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PART
NOTIFICATION

Item Significant
Parties

List the full names and business and residential addresses as applicable for the following persons

and The Issuers Directors and Officers

Name Business Address Residence Address

Robert Blades Jr Blades Holding Company Inc 1609 Heather Heights

Director Hornell New York 14843 Hornell New York 14843

Brenda Copeland One Steuben Square 5863 Dineen Road

President Chief Executive Hornell New York 14843-1699 HomelI New York 14843

Officer and Director

Michael Davidson Davidsons Furniture 212 Main Street

Director 161 Main Street Hornell NY 14843

Hornell NY 14843

Charles Edmondson Alfred University 71 Pine Hill Drive

Director Saxon Drive Carnegie Hall Alfred New York 14802

Alfred New York 14802

Mary Hilfiger One Steuben Square 80 Bennett Street

Corporate Secretary Hornell New York 14843-1699 Hornell New York 14843

Stoner Horey Not applicable
3461 Pierce Road

Director Canisteo New York 14823

Victor Myers Not applicable 8067 Gleason Road

Director Lima NY 14485

James Nicoloff One Steuben Square 62 Maple Street

Executive Vice President 1-lornell New York 14843-1699 Hornell New York 14843

Treasurer and

Chief Financial Officer

Charles Oliver Charles Oliver Son North Street

Director 17 South Church Street Canaseraga New York 14822

Canaseraga New York 14822

Amanda Parker The Bonadio Group 68 Covington Street

Director Lake Street Suite 203 Perry New York 14530

Perry New York 14530

David Shults Shults Shults 66 Maple Street

Chairman of the Board Seneca Street Hornell New York 14843

and Director Hornell New York 14843

Eric Shults Shults Shults 427 Seneca Road

Director Seneca Street Hornell New York 14843

Hornell New York 14843

Sherry Walton not applicable 4165 Grandview Avenue

Director Wellsville New York 14895

The Issuer has no general partners

The record owners of 5% or more of any class of the Issuers equity securities
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Name Business Address Residence Address

Steuben Trust Company One Steuben Square not applicable

as Trustee for Richard Hornell New York 14843-1699

Bradley QTIP Trust

David Shults Seneca Street 66 Maple Street

1-lornell New York 14843 Hornell New York 14843

Dick 1-lollands Not applicable 900 Taylor St 238

McLean Virginia 22102-34 19

The beneficial owners of 5% or more of any class of the Issuers equity securities

See responses under above

Promoters of the Issuer Not applicable

Affiliates of the Issuer Affiliates of the issuer are its banking subsidiary Steuben Trust Company
and subsidiary trust Steuben Statutory Trust II

Counsel to the issuer with respect to the proposed offering

Underberg Kessler LLP 300 Bausch Lomb Place Rochester New York 14604

through

Each underwriter with respect to the proposed offering the underwriters directors the underwriters

officers the underwriters general partners and counsel to the underwriter

In each case not applicable

Item Application of Rule 262

No person identified in response to Item is subject to any of the disqualification provisions

set forth in Rule 262

Not applicable

Item Affiliate Sales

Not applicable

Item Jurisdictions in Which Securities Are to be Offered

None

The Common Stock to be offered by the Issuer in its Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment

and Stock Purchase Plan Plan vihl be offered to the Issuers existing shareholders who reside in the states

of Arizona Arkansas California Colorado Connecticut Florida Georgia Illinois Maryland

Massachusetts Michigan Minnesota Mississippi New Jersey New York North Carolina Ohio Oregon

Pennsylvania Tennessee Texas Virginia and Washington The Plan and any shares of Common Stock

purchased by the Issuer for such Plan are being offered to existing shareholders of the Issuer by delivery of

the final Offering Circular by United States mail

Item Unregistered Securities Issued or Sold Within One Year

Not applicable

Item Other Present or Proposed Offerings

None

Item Marketing Arrangements

None not applicable

Item Relationship With Issuer of Experts Named in Offering Statement

Not applicable

Item Use of Solicitation of Interest Document

No not applicable
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PART II

OFFERING CERCULAR
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OFFERING CIRCULAR

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION
SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

165000 shares of Common Stock

$L00
par

value

TO THE COMMON SHAREHOLDERS OF STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

STC or the Company Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan the Plan The

Plan offers our shareholders who own the Companys Common Stock the opportunity to automatically

reinvest any cash dividends on your Common Stock in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock

No brokerage commissions fees or service charges will be paid by shareholders participating in the Plan for

purchases of shares made under the Plan

Dividends will be reinvested on quarterly basis as paid The Plan may purchase shares of Common

Stock on the open market or from the Company for the accounts of participants in the Plan as further

described herein

Shareholders may enroll in the Plan by completing the enclosed Authorization Form and returning it

to American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC 6201 l5 Avenue Brooklyn New York 11219 the

Companys Agent for administering the Plan Shareholders enrolled in the Plan will continue in the Plan

until they notif American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC in writing that they wish to withdraw

from participation in the Plan

If you do not wish to participate in the Plan you do not need to take any action You will continue

to receive your cash dividends if and when declared by check

Additional information about the Plan is provided in question-and-answer form in this Prospectus

Should any additional questions arise please contact us

Sincerely

Brenda Copeland

President and Chief Executive Officer

This Offering Circular relates to 165000 shares of Common Stock par value $1.00 per share of the

Company registered for sale under the Plan Please retain this Offering Circular for future reference

The date of commencement of this offering is March 2014
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STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

One Steuben Square

Hornell New York 14843-1699

607 324-5010

165000 shares of Common Stock

All the shares of Common Stock offered hereby are being sold by Steuben Trust Corporation STC
or the Company There is no public market for the Common Stock and it is unlikely that public market

will develop as result of this Offering The Company does not intend to list the Common Stock on any

securities exchange or the NASDAQ Stock Market The offering price will be determined as set forth in the

Plan copy of which is attached hereto as Annex

THE UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION DOES NOT PASS

UPON THE MERITS OF OR GIVE ITS APPROVAL TO ANY SECURITIES OFFERED OR THE
TERMS OF THE OFFERING NOR DOES IT PASS UPON THE ACCURACY OR
COMPLETENESS OF ANY OFFERING CIRCULAR OR OTHER SELLING LITERATURE

THESE SECURITIES ARE OFFERED PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROM
REGISTRATION WITH THE COMMISSION HOWEVER THE COMMISSION HAS NOT MADE
AN INDEPENDENT DETERMINATION THAT THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREUNDER ARE
EXEMPT FROM REGISTRATION

SEE RISK FACTORS BEGiNNING ON PAGE FOR INFORMATION THAT SHOULD BE

CONSIDERED BY PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS

Underwriting

Discounts and Proceeds to the

Price to Public Commissions Company

Per Share $31.50 -0- 31.50

Total $31.50 -0- 31.50

The date of this Offering Circular is March 12 2014

THE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OFFERED HEREUNDER ARE NOT DEPOSIT OR AN ACCOUNT OF OUR

BANK SUBSIDIARY AND ARE NOT INSURED BY THE FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION OR

ANY OTHER GOVERNMENT AGENCY

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR IS NOT AN OFFER TO SELL OUR COMMON STOCK AND IS NOT SOLICITING AN

OFFER TO BUY OUR COMMON STOCK EXCEPT TO OUR EXISTING SECURITY HOLDERS
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SUMMARY

The Plan provides all holders of the Companys Common Stock the ability on quarterly basis to

automatically reinvest all or portion of any cash dividends declared by the Company or to voluntarily invest

certain additional cash payments into additional shares of Common Stock This Offering Circular explains

the potential risks to those investing funds through the Plan and provides detailed information with respect to

the purpose advantages administration participation and costs associated with investing through the Plan

In addition the Offering Circular gives detailed information with respect to making purchases under the

Plan and how and when an investor may withdraw from the Plan

Finally the Offering Circular gives detailed information with respect to the Company its business

and competition This information includes statistical financial and descriptive detail of the Companys

lending activities as well as the regulation and supervision of the Company by Federal and New York State

authorities The capitalization of the Company is also discussed as well as its management
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SELECTED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA

The following tables set forth our selected consolidated historical financial and other data for the years

and at the dates indicated The information at December 31 2013 and 2012 and for the years then

ended is derived in part from and should be read together with our consolidated financial statements

and notes thereto beginning at page F-i of this offering circular The selected consolidated financial

data below should be read in conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and the accom

panying notes and Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opera

tions The historical results are not necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for any fu

ture period

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Condition

December 31

2013 2012

Dollars in Thousands

Assets

Cash and Due From Banks 13913 15008

Loans net 239513 240476

Investment Securities 161483 141010

Premises Equipment 7181 7497

Other Assets 16752 15498

Total Assets 438842 419489

Liabilities

Deposits 352952 330034

Borrowings 38000 41500

Subordinated Debentures 2062 2062

Accrued Interest Payable 85 97

Other Liabilities 3383 5073

Total Liabilities 396482 378766

Shareholders Equity

Common Stock 1728 1728

Additional Paid-In Capital 4502 4469

Undivided Profits 38188 33464

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income 13 2559

Treasury Stock 2234 183
Total Steuben Trust Corporation 42053 40409

Shareholders Equity

Non-controlling interest 307 314

Total Equity 42360 40723

Total Liabilities and Shareholders Equity 438842 419489
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Interest Income

Interest Expense

Net Interest Income

Provision for Loan Losses ____________ _________

Net Interest Income After Provision

for Loan Losses

Other Operating income

Operating Expenses

Income Before Income Tax

income Tax ____________ _________

Net Income

Less net inc attrib to non-controlling interest
______________ _________

Net income available to

Steuben Trust Corporation _____________ _________

Basic Earnings Per Share

Diluted Earnings Per Share 287

Year ended December 31

2013 2012

1.11% 1.09%

Return on Average Equity 11.57% 10.90%

Dividend Payout Ratio 0.00% 74.70%

Includes $1.00 accelerated dividend excluding the $1.00 dividend results in 37.14%

RISK FACTORS

PROSPECTIVE INVESTORS SHOULD CONSIDER CAREFULLY THE FOLLOWING

FACTORS IN ADDITION TO THE OTHER INFORMATION CONCERNING THE COMPANY

AND ITS BUSINESS CONTAINED IN THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR BEFORE PURCHASING

THE SHARES OFFERED HEREBY

THE COP11ANY MAY BE UNABLE TO PAY DIVIDENDS OR ITS ABILITY TO PAY

DIVIDENDS MAY BE RESTRICTED

The Companys ability to pay dividends to holders of its Common Stock is dependent on receipt of

cash dividends from its wholly-owned subsidiary Steuben Trust Company the Bank Federal regulations

limit the amount of cash dividends which the Bank may pay to the Company and may restrict the amount of

dividends payable by the Company Failure to obtain sufficient funds from the Bank to make periodic divi

dend payments will adversely affect the Companys ability to pay dividends to the holders of the Common

Stock The Banks ability to make dividend payments is subject to the Bank maintaining profitable opera

tions There can be no assurance that future earnings will support dividend payments to the Company

The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System the Federal Reserve Board has the power

to prohibit the payment of dividends by bank holding company if actions by such company constitute an

unsafe or unsound practice The Federal Reserve Board has issued policy statement on the payment of cash

dividends by bank holding companies which expresses the Federal Reserve Boards view that bank holding

company should pay cash dividends only to the extent that the companys net income for the past year
is

sufficient to cover both the cash dividends and rate of earnings retention that is consistent with the

companys capital needs asset quality and overall financial condition The Federal Reserve Board indicated

that it would be inappropriate for company experiencing serious financial problems to borrow funds to pay

dividends Federal Reserve Board policy also requires that bank holding company serve as source of

financial strength to its subsidiary banks by standing ready to use available resources to provide adequate

capital funds to those banks during periods of financial stress or adversity These policies could affect the

ability of the Company to pay cash dividends

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Income

Dollars in Thousands Except Per Share Data

Twelve Months Ending

12/31/13 12/31/12

15707 15730

1027 1389

14680 14341

154 166

14526

4831

12765

6592

1840

4752
28

14175

4546

12696

6025

1626

4399
28

4724 4371

2.88 2.66

Other Financial Information

Return on Average Assets

2.66
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Federal legislation also prohibits depository institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation the FDIC such as the Bank from paying dividends or making capital distributions that

would cause the institution to fail to meet minimum capital requirements In addition under the New York

Banking Law the Bank may only pay dividends up to an amount equal to its net profits for the current year

combined with its retained net profits of the preceding two years

NO PUBLIC MARKET FOR STOCK COMPANY NOT REQUIRED TO FILE PERIODIC

REPORTS WITH THE SEC

There is no public market for the Companys Common Stock offered hereby and there can be no

assurance that any trading market will develop at any time in the future Additionally the Common Stock

offered hereby is offered pursuant to an exemption from the registration requirements under the Securities

Act pursuant to SEC Regulation The Company is not and will not be required to file periodic reports with

the SEC as result of this Offering or otherwise be subject to the provisions of the Securities Exchange Act

of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act or the rules of the SEC applicable to reporting companies Such

reporting obligation would not arise unless and until the Company has 2000 shareholders of record In order

to avoid the direct and indirect costs of being reporting company the Company intends to attempt to stay

below 2000 record shareholders

SIGNIFICANT COMPETITION FROM BANKS AN OTHER FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

OFFERJ1G SIMILAR SERVICES

The Company faces significant competition from many banks savings institutions and other finan

cial institutions which have branch offices or otherwise operate in the Companys market area as well as

many other companies now offering variety of financial services Many of these competitors have substan

tially greater financial resources than the Company including larger capital base that allows them to attract

customers seeking larger loans than the Bank is able to make

LOCAL NATIONAL AND INTERNATIONAL ECONOMIC CONDiTIONS AND GOVERNMENT
MONETARY AND FISCAL POLICIES MAY ADVERSELY IMPACT PROFITABILITY

Commercial banking is affected directly and indirectly by local domestic and international eco

nomic and political conditions and by government monetary and fiscal policies Conditions such as infla

tion recession unemployment volatile interest rates tight money supply real estate values international

conflicts and other factors beyond the control of the Company and the Bank may adversely affect the poten

tial profitability of the Company and the Bank The Company is not immune from the effects of the current

global economic downturn Maintaining profitability may become increasingly challenging until these con

ditions improve It should be noted that the recent recovery in the stock market has improved the overall

wealth of many households However most of this additional wealth is in 401k plans or other retirement

accounts Therefore the spending power of these households has not been greatly increased Volatility in

the stock market remains risk to household wealth levels as well as consumer confidence The unemploy

ment rates are still at very high levels both nationally and locally but off their historic highs from few

years ago

FEDERAL AN STATE REGULATIONS COULD AFFECT THE COMPANY ANI THE BANK
BY INCREASING COSTS OF OPERATIONS

The operations of the Company and the Bank are heavily regulated and will be affected by present

and future legislation and by the policies established from time to time by various federal and state regulatory

authorities In particular the monetary policies of the Federal Reserve Board have had significant effect on

the operating results of banks in the past and are expected to continue to do so in the future In addition the

Company is regulated by the Federal Reserve Board under the federal Bank Holding Company Act of 1956

as amended and the Bank is regulated both by the New York State Department of Financial Services and by

the FDIC Changes in applicable laws and regulations resulting from the current turmoil in the financial

markets are anticipated These may result in increased cost of operations for the Company Increased

regulation is highly likely and as result the Banks operations may be affected and its costs of compliance

may rise
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The Dodd-Frank Act enacted in July 2010 represents comprehensive overhaul of the US financial

services industry and requires federal agencies to implement new rules These new rules will include among

other things changes to consumer and mortgage origination requirements

In July 2013 the Federal Reserve and the Banks primary federal regulator the FDIC and other

regulatory agencies published final rules the Basel III Capital Rules that will revise their leverage and risk-

based capital requirements and the method for calculating risk-weighted assets to make them consistent with

agreements that were reached by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision and certain provisions of the

Dodd-Frank Act Among other things the rule establishes new common equity Tier minimum capital

requirement 4.5% of risk-weighted assets increases the minimum Tier capital to risk-based assets

requirement from 4% to 6% of risk-weighted assets and assigns higher risk weight 150% to exposures

that are more than 90 days past due or are on nonaccrual status and to certain commercial real estate facilities

that finance the acquisition development or construction of real property The final rule also requires

unrealized gains and losses on certain available -for-sale securities holdings to be included for purposes of

calculating regulatory capital requirements unless one-time opt-in or opt-out is exercised The rule limits

banking organizations capital distributions and certain discretionary bonus payments if the banking

organization does not hold capital conservation buffer consisting of 2.5% of common equity Tier

capital risk-based weighted assets in addition to the amount necessary to meeting its minimum risk-based

capital requirements

The final rule becomes effective for the Bank on January 2015 The capital conservation buffer

requirement will be phased in beginning January 2016 and ending January 2019 when the full capital

conservation buffer requirement will be effective The final rule also implements consolidated capital

requirements effective January 12015

OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY AND THE BANK DEPEND IN LARGE PART ON EXISTING

MANAGEMENT

The operations of the Company and the Bank to date have been largely dependent on existing

management The loss to the Company or the Bank of one or more of its existing executive officers could

have material adverse effect on the Companys business and results of operations

GEOGRAPHIC CONCENTRATION OF LOAN PORTFOLIO

The banks primary lending markets are the New York counties of Steuben Allegany Livingston

Wyoming and Monroe Therefore despite the banks diversification efforts we are still reliant on the

economy in this region as well as at risk to any natural disasters in the area

MANAGEMENT TIOUGH LARGE PERCENTAGE OF OWNERSHIP COULD CONTROL

CERTAIN SHAREHOLDER VOTES

As of December 2013 Directors and officers of the Company and their affiliates owned or had

power to vote approximately 24.6% of the Companys outstanding shares of Common Stock This includes

stock options that are either vested or will be vested within 60 days of December 2013 Management by

virtue of this concentration of stock ownership may be able to control the election of the Companys

Directors and to control the outcome of actions requiring shareholder approval

CERTAIN PROVISIONS MAY DETER OR DISCOURAGE CHANGE IN THE CONTROL OF

THE COMPANY

The Companys Certificate of Incorporation Bylaws and the New York Business Corporation Law

contain certain provisions which may have the effect of deterring or discouraging among other things non-

negotiated tender or exchange offer for shares of Common Stock proxy contest for control of the

Company the assumption of control of the Company by holder of large block of Common Stock or

removal of the Companys management
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TEN LARGEST SHAREHOLDERS MAY BE LIABLE FOR UNPAID WAGES AND SALARIES

New York Business Corporation Law Section 630 holds the ten largest shareholders of New York

corporation liable for any wages or salaries that an employee or laborer is unable to collect from the

Company Under Section 630 each of the ten largest shareholders of the Company could be personally

liable for any wages or salaries earned for services provided to the Company for which the Company fails to

make payment

OUR ALLOWANCE FOR POSSIBLE LOAN LOSSES MAY BE INSUFFICIENT

We maintain an allowance for loan losses which is reserve established through provision for loan

losses charged to expense This reserve represents our best estimate of probable losses that have been

incurred within the existing portfolio of loans The allowance in our judgment is necessary to reserve for

estimated loan losses and risks inherent in the loan portfolio The level of the allowance reflects our ongoing

evaluation of various factors including growth of tile portfolio an analysis of individual credits adverse

situations that could affect borrowers ability to repay prior and current loss experience tile results of

regulatory examinations and current economic conditions The determination of the appropriate
level of tile

allowance for loan losses inherently involves high degree of subjectivity and requires us to make

significant estimates of current credit risks and future trends all of which may undergo material changes

Changes in economic conditions affecting borrowers new information regarding existing loans

identification of additional problem loans and other factors both within and outside our control including the

possible collapse or insolvency of major area employers as result of the current recession may require an

increase in the allowance for loan losses In addition bank regulators periodically review our allowance for

loan losses and may require an increase in the provision for loan losses or the recognition of further loan

chargeoffs based on judgments different than those of management In addition if charge-offs in future

periods exceed the allowance for loan losses we will need additional provisions to increase the allowance for

loan losses Ally increases in tile allowance for loan losses will result in decrease in net income and

possibly capital and may have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

OUR IJFORMATION SYSTEMS MAY EXPERIENCE AN INTERRUPTION OR BREACH IN

SECURITY

We rely heavily on communications and information systems to conduct our business Ally failure

interruption or breach in security of these systems could result in failures or disruptions in our general ledger

deposit loan and other systems including risks to data integrity While we have policies and procedures

designed to prevent or limit the effect of the failure interruption or security breach of our information

systems there can be no assurance that any such failures interruptions or security breaches will not occur or

if they do occur that they will be adequately addressed The occurrence of any failures interruptions or

security breaches of our information systems could damage our reputation result in loss of customer

business subject us to additional regulatory scrutiny or expose us to civil litigation and possible financial

liability any of which could have material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of

operations

The Bank has comprehensive Business Resumption Contingency Plan that sets forth plans and

procedures for various types of identified risks including but not limited to fire flooding environmental

disasters and technical causes The plan is updated periodically and approved by the Board of Directors on

an annual basis key component of the plan includes backup and recovery procedures for our core

operating system The Bank has contract with third party Sungard for this service which includes the

use of test site in the event of an emergency Employees of the Bank perform restoration of the core

system on an annual basis at the test site

OUR RESULTS MAY BE AFFECTED BY THE SOUNDNESS OF OTHER FINANCIAL

INSTITUTIONS

We engage in trading clearing counterparty and other types
of transactions with other financial

services institutions We regularly review our exposure to these other institutions However default by one

or more of these institutions could adversely affect our results from operations and financial condition
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PLAN OF DISTRIBUTION

SHARE OWNER DWIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The provisions of the Plan are discussed in question-and-answer form below Holders of shares of

the Companys Common Stock that do not wish to participate in the Plan will continue to receive cash

dividends if and when declared by check as in the past Shareholders that wish to participate in the Plan

will need to complete and submit an Authorization Form as discussed below The Plan copy of which is

attached as Annex to this Offering Circular is incorporated herein by reference All recipients of this

Offering Circular are urged to read the Plan in its entirety

The Plan provides holders of the Companys Common Stock with simple and convenient method

of purchasing additional shares of Common Stock without fees of any kind Any holder of record of shares

of Common Stock is eligible to join the Plan

Participants in the Plan may

Reinvest dividends on all shares held by participant

Reinvest dividends oii less than all of the shares minimum of 10% of share balance held by

participant and continue to receive cash dividends on the other shares

Invest by making voluntary additional cash payments at any time in an amount not less than

$100.00 but up to $5000.00 per quarter
whether or not dividends are being reinvested and provided the

Plan participant
does not reside in the state of Pennsylvania

Cash payments vill be invested on the dividend payment date of each quarter
after they are received

Shares purchased will also be entitled to subsequent dividends

Purpose

What is the pmpose oft/ic Plan

The purpose of the Plan is to provide holders of record of the Companys Common Stock with

simple convenient and inexpensive method of investing cash dividends and additional voluntary cash

payments in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock without payment of any brokerage

commissions or service charges

Advantages

What are the advantages oft/ic Plan

Plan participants may purchase additional shares of Common Stock quarterly with reinvested cash

dividends on all or less than all of the shares minimum of 10% of share balance of the Companys Common

Stock which they own Except for Plan participants residing in Pennsylvania participants also may elect to

purchase additional shares of Common Stock quarterly
with voluntary additional cash payments of

minimum of $100.00 per quarter up to maximum of $5000.00 per quarter No commissions or service

charges are paid by participants in connection with purchases
under the Plan Full investment of funds is

possible under the Plan because the Plan permits fractions of shares as well as full shares to be credited to

participants account In addition dividends in respect of such fractions as well as full shares will be

credited to participants account Dividends on the shares in the participants account are automatically

reinvested in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock Participants are assured of safekeeping of

shares credited to their accounts under the Plan Regular statements of account provide simplified record

keeping The participants equity in the Company will increase with each dividend payment thereby

generating additional dividend income to be invested
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Administration

Who administers the Plan for participanls

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC the Agent 6201 15ttt Avenue Brooklyn

New York will administer the Plan for participants including all record keeping sending statements of

account to participants and performing other duties relating to the Plan Shares of Common Stock purchased

under the Plan will be held by and registered in the name of the Agent or its nominee as agent for the

participants in the Plan

Participation

Hos does shareholder particate

holder of record of shares of Common Stock may join the Plan by signing the Authorization Form

copy of which is enclosed with this Offering Circular as Annex and returning it to American Stock

Transfer and Trust Company LLC 6201 15th Avenue Brooklyn New York 11219 An Authorization Form

and return envelope may be obtained at any time by calling 1800-937-S449 Written requests for

Authorization Forms and return envelopes should be mailed to the Agent All holders of record of shares of

Common Stock are eligible to participate in the Plan If shareholders shares are held in the name of

broker or nominee the ownership of the number of shares that the shareholder wishes to have participate in

the Plan must first be transferred into the shareholders name in order to participate in the Plan To affect

such transfer shareholder should contact his/her/its broker or nominee

When may shareholder join the Plan

holder of record of shares of Common Stock may join the Plan at any time An optional cash

payment may be made at any time including when joining the Plan by enclosing check or money order

with an Authorization Form

The Authorization Form must be received by the Agent no later than five business days prior to

record date for dividend in order to reinvest that dividend through the Plan With respect to any

Authorization Form received after such date the reinvestment of dividends through the Plan will begin with

the next succeeding dividend

What does the Authorization Form provide

The Authorization Form provides for the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock through

the following investment options

Reinvest dividends paid on all shares held by participant

Reinvest dividends paid on less than all of the shares held by participant and continue to

receive cash dividends on the other shares

Invest by making voluntary additional cash payments at any time of not less than $100.00

per quarter and not exceeding $5000.00 per quarter whether or not dividends are being reinvested

Cash dividends on shares credited to participants account under the Plan are automatically

reinvested in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock

How nicry participant change options under the Plan

participant may change his/her/its investment option at any time by signing new Authorization

Form and returning it to the Agent Any change in option with
respect to reinvestment of dividends must be

received by the Agent at least five business days prior to the record date for the next succeeding dividend to

allow sufficient time for processing participant also must submit an appropriately completed form at any

time that participant desires to make additional voluntary purchases of shares of Common Stock under the

Plan
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Costs

Are there any expenses to particrvanls iii connection with purchases under the Plan

No All brokerage commissions or service charges vill be paid by the Company for open market or

negotiated purchases of shares No brokerage fees or service charges will be charged for purchases of shares

under the Plan directly from the Company All costs of administration of the Plan are paid by the Company

Purchases

What iill be the price of shares of Common Stock purchased under the Plan

Ef original issue or treasury shares are purchased under the Plan directly from the Company the per

share price of the shares so purchased will be the then-current price per
share of the Companys Common

Stock as determined by committee appointed by the Companys Board of Directors or the Board of

Directors itself the Committee This Committee determines what in its best judgment the Committee

believes to be the fair market value of share of the Companys Common Stock from time to time The

Committee may determine such fair market value from any reasonable criteria it elects to i.ise such as recent

sales of shares of Common Stock in the marketplace of which it is aware the fair market value and recent

sales of shares of comparable institutions other measures such as return on equity return on assets and book

value and any other reasonable criteria the Committee determines Only the shares that may be sold by the

Company to the Plan are the subject of this Offering Circular and the Company will only receive the

proceeds from the sales of any such shares

if shares are purchased under the Plan in the market such purchases will be made at prevailing

market prices and the price to each participants Plan account will be based on the average price of all shares

so purchased The Company will not receive the proceeds from any such purchases

If shares are purchased under the Plan in privately negotiated transactions such purchases will be

made at prices not exceeding the then-fair market value of the Companys Common Stock as determined by

the Committee and the price to each participants account will be based on the average price of all shares so

purchased

As of the date of this Offering Circular the current fair market value of the Companys Common

stock is $31.50 per share as determined by the Committee From time to time the Committee may determine

new fair market value for the Companys Common Stock Plan participants will be so notified by

supplement to this Offering Circular

10 How iiany shares of Common Stock will be purchased for participants

The number of shares to be purchased for participant depends on the amount of participants

dividends and the prevailing market price or fair market value as applicable of the Common Stock on the

relevant purchase date As soon as possible following each dividend payment date each participants Plan

account will be credited with that number of shares including fractional shares computed to three decimal

places equal to the amounts to be invested for participant divided by the applicable purchase price

11 When willpurchases of shares under the Plan be nade

On each dividend payment date the cash dividends payable on all shares held in participants Plan

account together with any voluntary additional cash payments that have been received from participant at

least five business days prior to the record date for such dividend will be applied by the Agent to the

purchase of additional shares of Common Stock Cash dividends on all shares of Common Stock purchased

for each participants Plan account will automatically be reinvested in additional shares of Common Stock

12 Hoi will shares be purchased

The Agent will use funds from cash dividends and voluntary additional cash payments to acquire

shares of Common Stock under the Plan in any of four ways as directed by the Company purchase

newly issued shares directly from the Company purchase Treasury shares directly from the Company

purchase outstanding shares in the market purchase shares in negotiated transactions The Agent may
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also use any combination of these methods as directed by the Company If the Company sells newly issued

and/or Treasury shares under the Plan participants will become owners of such shares as of the dividend

payment date To the extent shares are purchased in the open market and/or in negotiated transactions such

shares will usually be purchased within ten business days following dividend payment date subject to the

availability of shares in the market and to any regulatory restrictions on such purchases to which the

Company may be subject Plan participants will become owners of shares purchased for their accounts upon

settlement of open market or privately negotiated purchases

The Company will make every effort to reinvest all dividends promptly after receipt No interest

will be paid on dividends or on voluntary additional cash payments pending investment of such funds To

the extent that any dividends and/or any voluntary additional cash payments cannot be reinvested in shares of

Common Stock within 45 days following dividend payment date then the Company reserves the right to

distribute the uninvested dividends to the participants and to return any voluntary additional cash payments

received

Voluntary Additional Cash Payments

13 How are voluntaiy additional cash payments made

Except for Plan participants residing in Pennsylvania see Page 39 of the Offering Circular

voluntary additional cash payments may be made at any time and the amount each time may be varied

voluntary additional cash payment may be made when enrolling by enclosing check or money order with

an Authorization Form Payments may not be less than $100.00 per quarter
and cannot exceed $5000.00 per

quarter The Agent will send receipt for each voluntary additional cash payment together with statement

for use in making the next such payment Note that purchases of shares with voluntary additional cash

payments will only be made quarterly as well and that no interest will be paid on such voluntary cash

payments received pending the investment of such funds Accordingly it is suggested that shareholders

desiring to make voluntary additional cash purchases of shares under the Plan submit such payments together

with an appropriately completed form to the Agent toward the end of quarter

Withdrawal From Participation

14 How does participant iiihdrcrw from the Plan

In order to withdraw from the Plan participant must send written request to the Agent When

participant withdraws from the Plan certificates for whole shares credited to the participants account under

the Plan will be issued and cash payment will be made for any fraction of share based upon the most

recent average per
share purchase price of Common Stock made under the Plan prior to the effective date of

the withdrawal multiplied by the fractional interest

15 When may participant withdrcntfrom the P/a

participant may withdraw from the Plan at any time To be effective for given dividend payment

date the withdrawal notice must be received by the Agent at least five business days prior to the record date

for that dividend Any notice of withdrawal received less than five business days prior to dividend record

date will not be effective until dividends paid for that record date have been reinvested and the shares

credited to the participants Plan account

16 Can participant reenter the Plan after withdrawing

Yes by following the procedure for initial enrollment see Question

Other Information

17 Will certificates automatically be issued for shares of Common Stock purchased under the Plan

No Unless requested by participant certificates for shares of Common Stock purchased under the

Plan will not be issued All shares purchased will be held by the Agent as nominee of and for the benefit of

Plan participants The number of shares purchased for each participants Plan account will be shown on

statement of account that each participant will receive at least quarterly from the Agent This feature also

protects against loss theft or destruction of stock certificates
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Certificates for any number of full shares credited to participants Plan account will be issued

without charge upon written request Such shares remain eligible to participate in the Plan and if

participant remains in the Plan any remaining full shares and fractional interests in the participants Plan

account will continue to participate in the Plan as well

The noncertificated shares credited to participants Plan account cannot be pledged as collateral for

loan or other obligation of participant participant that wishes to pledge such shares must request that

certificates for such shares be issued in his/her/its name Certificates representing fractional interests will not

be issued under any circumstances

18 What happens when participant uho is reinvesting the cash dividends on shares registered in the

particpan name sells or iranfers portion of such shares

If participant who is reinvesting the cash dividends on shares of Common Stock registered in

his/her/its name disposes of portion of such shares with respect to which he/she/it is participating in the

Plan the Agent will continue to reinvest the dividends on the remainder of such shares that are participating

in the Plan

19 What happens when particpan1 sells or transfers all of the shares registered in ihe pa1iictrxi1ti

name

If participant disposes of all shares of Common Stock registered in his/her/its name the Agent will

continue to reinvest the dividends on any remaining shares credited to the participants Plan account unless

the participant also withdraws those shares held in his/her/its Plan account as well

20 How may parliczpant transfer shares held in the participants Plan account

Plan participant that wishes to transfer shares held in his/her/its Plan account must first withdraw

those shares from the Plan Upon the receipt of the certificates representing such shares the participant

may then transfer those shares as the participant would any other securities including without limitation

compliance with applicable federal and state laws

21 If the Company has rights offering /zot will particlpanl entitlement be computed

participants entitlenient in rights offering will be based on the participants total holdings --just

as the participants dividend is computed each quarter Rights certificates will be issued for the number of

whole shares only however and rights based on fraction of share held in participants Plan account will

be sold for the participants account and the net proceeds will be treated as an optional cash payment

22 What happens if the Company issues stock dividend or declares stock split

Any shares of Common Stock distributed as result of stock dividend or stock split by the

Company on shares credited to the account of participant under the Plan will be added to the participants

Plan account Stock dividends or split shares distributed on shares registered in the name of the participant

will be mailed directly to the shareholder in the same manner as to shareholders who are not participating in

the Plan

23 How will parIiczoant Plan shares be voted at meetings of shareholders

All shares of Common Stock credited to participants Plan account will be voted as the participant

directs If on the record date for meeting of shareholders there are shares credited to participants Plan

account the participant will be sent the proxy material for that meeting If the participant returns an

executed proxy card in timely fashion it will be voted in accordance with the instructions so received with

respect to all shares credited to the participants Plan account All such shares may also be voted in person at

any meeting of shareholders If the participant does not execute and return proxy card in timely fashion

and does not attend the meeting and vote such shares in person such shares will not be voted at that meeting
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24 What are the federal income lax consequences ofparticipation in the P/an

The Company has not received ruling from the Internal Revenue Service concerning the federal

income tax consequences of participating in the Plan Participants are urged to consult their own tax advisers

before joining the plan However general discussion of certain tax consequences follows

participant in the Plan will be treated for federal income tax purposes as having received

on the dividend payment date dividend in an amount equal to the fair market value on the dividend

payment date of the shares of Common Stock credited to the participants Plan account To the extent that

dividends paid by the Company to its shareholders are treated as made from the Companys earnings and

profits those dividends are taxed in accordance with the provisions of the Internal Revenue Code for federal

income tax purposes The Company has sufficient earnings and profits such that participants can expect
that

the full amount of any dividends paid will be currently taxable to Plan participants

The tax basis of shares purchased with reinvested dividends will equal the average price at

which all shares were acquired with respect to specific dividend payment Likewise for each quarterly

purchase of shares made with voluntary additional cash payments the tax basis of such shares will equal the

average price at which all such shares were acquired

participants holding period for shares acquired pursuant to the Plan both with reinvested

dividends and voluntary additional cash payments will begin on the day following the purchase of such

shares

participant vill not realize any taxable income when the participant
receives certificates

for whole shares credited to the participants account either upon the participants request for certain of those

shares or upon withdrawal from or termination of the Plan

participant will realize long term or short-term gain or loss when shares are sold or

exchanged depending upon whether the shares have been held for more than one year at the time of

disposition In the case of fractional share when the participant receives cash adjustment for fraction of

share credited to the participants account upon withdrawal from or termination of the Plan the amount of

such gain or loss will be the difference between the amount which the participant receives for the shares or

fraction of share and the tax basis therefor

25 Whal are the responsibilities oft/ic Company and the Agent under the Plan

The Agent receives the participants dividend payments and voluntary additional cash payments if

any invests such amounts in additional shares of the Companys Common Stock maintains continuing

records of each participants account and advises participants as to all transactions in and the status of their

accounts The Agent acts as agent for the participants

As soon as practical after each purchase for the account of Plan participant
each participant will

receive statement of account from the Agent showing the total number of shares held in the participants

Plan account the amount of dividends received on the shares held in the participants Plan account the

amount invested on the participants behalf including any voluntary additional cash payments received the

number of shares purchased the price per share and the acquisition date of such shares Additionally each

participant will continue to receive copies of the Companys annual and other periodic reports to

shareholders proxy statements and information for income tax reporting purposes

The Company reserves the right to interpret and regulate the Plan as necessary or desirable in

connection with the administration of the Plan In administering the Plan neither the Company nor the

Agent will be liable for any act done in good faith or for any good faith omission to act including without

limitation any claim of liability arising out of failure to terminate participants account upon such

participants death prior to receipt of notice in writing of such death nor shall they have any duties

responsibilities or liabilities except as expressly set forth in the Plan

Participants must recognize that neither the Company nor the Agent can provide any assurance that

shares of Common Stock purchased under the Plan will at any particular time be worth more or less than

their purchase price
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26 May the Plan be changed or discontinued

While the Company currently expects to continue the Plan indefinitely it reserves the right to

suspend modify or terminate the Plan at any time All participants
will receive notice of any such

suspension modification or termination All notices from the Agent or the Company to participant will be

addressed to the participants last address of record with the Agent The mailing of notice to participants

last address of record will satis1 the Plan requirement of giving notice to such participant Therefore

participants must promptly notify the Agent in writing of any change of address

27 To whom do write for additional hfornation conceiung the Plan

The Plan is administered by the Agent and all correspondence should be directed to

American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC

Attention Dividend Reinvestment Department

6201 15 Avenue

Brooklyn New York 11219

-800-937-5449
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INFORMATION RIGA1UING THE COMPANY

GENERAL

The Company is bank holding company incorporated under the New York Business Corporation

Law on February 1990 and headquartered in Hornell New York It is the sole shareholder of Steuben

Trust Company the Bank New York chartered commercial bank that commenced operations in 1902

The Banks deposits are insured by the FDIC The Bank is not member of the Federal Reserve System

The Company also has subsidiary trust Steuben Statutory Trust 11 see Subordinated Debentures

on page 25 The Company is exploring opportunities in other financial services

The Bank is locally managed and community oriented commercial bank which provides loans both

residential and commercial and other traditional financial services to customers consisting principally of

individuals and small to medium-sized businesses The Bank attracts deposits from the general public

business and government entities through its offices and uses these funds and other available sources of

funds to originate loans The Bank seeks to provide personal attention and professional financial assistance

to customers The Banks philosophy includes providing friendly informed and courteous service local and

timely decision making flexible and reasonable operating procedures and consistently applied credit

policies

The Banks market primary market area is located in Western New York State Steuben County

branches Allegany County branches Livingston County branch Monroe County branch and

Wyoming County branch Overall the combined population of the Banks primary and extended markets

was approximately million based on 2010 census data The three counties representing the majority of the

Banks business Steuben County Allegany County and Livingston County had combined population of

approximately 209000 based on 2010 census data The City of Hornell where the administrative offices are

located has population of approximately 9000 based on 2010 census data

As of December 31 2013 the Bank had total of approximately 121 full-time equivalent

employees

BUSINESS AND COMPETITION

Lending Activities

General

At December 31 2013 the Banks net loan portfolio totaled $239.5 million representing

approximately 54.6% of its $438.8 million of total assets at that date The principal segments of loans in the

Banks portfolio are commercial loans residential mortgage loans and consumer loans

Commercial Loans

The Bank originates secured and unsecured loans for commercial corporate agricultural and

business purposes At December 31 2013 $145.1 million or 59.9% of the Banks total loan portfolio

consisted of commercial and agricultural loans The Banks commercial loans consist primarily of loans

secured by real estate equipment machinery and other corporate assets Commercial loans are also made to

provide working capital to businesses in the form of lines of credit which may be secured by real estate

accounts receivable inventory equipment or other assets The Bank had approximately $1.8 million of

vehicle dealership floor plan loans to finance retail inventory outstanding at December 31 2013 versus $1.6

million at December 31 2012 The financial condition and cash flow of commercial borrowers are

monitored by the submission of quarterly semi-annual and annual corporate financial statements personal

financial statements and tax returns The frequency of required financial information depends on the size

and complexity of the credit and the collateral which secures the loan
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The Bank does not have any concentrations of loans exceeding 10% of loans to borrowers engaged

in similar activities which would cause them to be similarly affected by economic or other conditions

Residential Mortgage Loans

The Bank originates adjustable and fixed-rate residential mortgage loans and home equity loans and

lines of credit to its retail customers The Bank has historically been portfolio lender The Bank originates

loans both for sale to the secondary market and to hold in its portfolio For example during the twelve

months ended December 31 2013 the Bank originated and sold $11.0 million of residential mortgage loans

in the secondary market At December 31 2013 $81.9 million or 33.8% of the Banks total loan portfolio

consisted of one to four family residential mortgage loans and home equity loans and lines of credit Most of

these loans are secured by property located in the Banks immediate market area

Although the Bank typically originates loans to hold in its portfolio from time to time the Bank sells

such loans on the secondary market For example during the period ended December 31 2013 the Bank

was servicing $26.5 million in residential mortgage loans previously sold to Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Corporation FHLMC As noted earlier there are new regulatory requirements regarding residential

mortgages and for the most part the Bank previously adhered to these requirements Thus there was not

great
deal of change required to remain in compliance

The Bank originates residential mortgage loans in accordance with guidelines adopted by the Board

of Directors and modified from time to time

Pursuant to these underwriting guidelines the Bank will lend up to 80% of the appraised value of the

property securing single-family residential mortgage loan under certain circumstances Generally loans up

to 95% of appraised value may be granted to borrowers who obtain private mortgage insurance

Home equity loans which are fixed rate term loans are generally originated by the Bank for up to

75% of appraised value less the amount of any existing prior liens on the property The Bank typically also

offers home equity lines of credit typically variable rate open-end loans in amounts up to 75% of appraised

value less the amount of any existing prior liens Home equity loans generally have maximum term of

fifteen years The Bank secures these loans and lines with first or second mortgages If the Bank has the

first mortgage the home equity loan can generally be up to 85% of appraised value in aggregate Exceptions

can be approved by officers designated by the Board of Directors

Typically the Bank requires either title insurance or an attorneys opinion letter insuring the priority

of the mortgage lien as well as fire and extended coverage casualty insurance in order to protect the property

securing its residential and other mortgage loans The properties securing all of the Banks residential

mortgage loans are typically appraised by appraisers approved by the Board of Directors from time to time

Consumer Loans

The Bank offers full range of consumer loans in order to meet demand for such financial services

from its customers and because such loans typically have shorter terms and higher interest rates than

commercial or residential mortgage loans Consumer loans are made on both direct and indirect basis and

may be secured or unsecured and include motor vehicle loans personal loans overdraft protection and

recreational vehicle loans

The Banks underwriting guidelines for such loans generally require that borrower have been in his

or her present job for minimum of two years credit report
is obtained on each borrower Generally the

borrowers total debt to income ratio should not exceed 40% Loans secured by motor vehicles may require

10% down payment However the ability of the borrower to repay is the primary consideration At

December 31 2013 $15.3 million or 6.3% of the Banks total loans consisted of consumer loans
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Composition

The following table sets forth the Banks loans by major categories as of the dates indicated

At December At December

312013 31 2012

Consumer Dollars in Thousands

Installment 15257 15091

Residential Mortgages

includes home equity loans 81549 91811

Commercial

Business and agricultural 145110 136024

Total loans gross 241916 242926

Net unearned loan origination fees and costs 457 425

Total loans 242373 243351

Allowance for loan losses 2860 2875
Net Loans 239513 240476

Policies and Procedures

The Banks written lending policies require underwriting loan documentation and credit analysis

standards to be met prior to funding any loan Lending authorities for the Banks officers are established by

the Banks Board of Directors consistent with the knowledge training experience and lending record of

each officer Loan decisions for credits in excess of $750000 are made by the Banks Board of Directors or

Loan Committee comprised largely of Directors After the loan has been approved and funded continued

periodic review is required Due to the secured nature of residential mortgage loans and the smaller balances

of individual installment loans sampling techniques are used on continuing basis for credit reviews of these

loan types The Bank has policy of discontinuing accrual of interest income at the time the loan becomes

90 days delinquent unless the loan is well secured and in process of collection If circumstances warrant

accrual of interest may be discontinued prior to 90 days If loss of loan principal is anticipated any

payments received on that non-accrual loan is credited to principal until full recovery of past due payments

has been recognized The loan is not restored to accrual status until the customer demonstrates the ability to

service the loan over its remaining life in accordance with the underlying note agreement Loans are charged

off in whole or in part upon determination that loss will occur The Bank considers loan impaired

when based on current information and events it is probable that it will be unable to collect all amounts of

principal and interest under the original terms of the agreement Accordingly the Bank measures certain

impaired commercial loans based on the present value of future cash flows discounted at the loans effective

interest rate or at the loans observable market price or the fair value of the collateral if the loan is collateral

dependent The Bank collectively evaluates large groups of small balance homogeneous loans which include

commercial loans less than $100000 all residential mortgages automobile and other consumer loans Non

accrual and delinquent loans are reviewed on monthly basis to determine potential losses from impairment
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The following table sets forth information concerning loan delinquency and other non-performing assets

At December 31 At December 31

2013 2012

Dollars in Thousands

Loans accruing but past due

30 to 89 days 1887 1492

Loans accruing but past due

9odaysandover 191 87

Total non-accrual loans 1320 1946

Other real estate owned net of valuation allowance 666 1203

Total non-performing assets 2177 3236

Non-accrual loans as percentage
of total

loans net ounearned loan premiums

and fees 0.54% 0.80%

Non-performing assets as percentage
of

total assets 0.50% 0.77%

Non-performing assets are comprised of loans accruing but past due 90 days and over ii non-

accrual loans and iii other real estate owned OREO

At December 31 2013 and December 31 2012 the Bank had $1148000 in loans that were

considered impaired and had an allocation allowance for probable losses compared to $1264000 at

December 31 2012 Impairment applies to loans that are identified for evaluation on an individual basis

Loans are considered impaired when based on current information and events it is probable that the creditor

will be unable to collect all interest and principal payments due according to the contractual terms of the loan

agreement The impairment allowance associated with these loans at December 31 2013 was $274000

compared to $448000 at December 31 2012 There were $167000 considered impaired that required no

allocated reserve at December 31 2013 compared to $208000 at December 31 2012 At December 31

2013 and December 31 2012 non-accrual loans were 054% and 0.80% respectively of total loans while

non-performing assets were 0.50% and 0.77% respectively of total assets At both December 31 2013 and

December 31 2012 all problem loans were either classified as impaired or non-performing Potential

problem loans are loans which management has serious doubts as to the borrowers ability to comply with

the present repayment terms and loans which management is actively monitoring due to changes in the

borrowers financial condition Impaired loans non-performing loans and potential problem loans have

been considered in managements analysis of the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses

At December 31 2013 and December 31 2012 there were no other interest-bearing assets that

would be classified as impaired non-performing or potential problem loans if such assets were loans Other

interest- bearing assets include investment securities federal funds sold and interest-bearing balances with

other banks

Real estate acquired by the bank as result of foreclosure and/or deed in lieu of foreclosure is

classified as OREO until it is sold Write-downs from cost to estimated fair value which are required at the

time of foreclosure are charged to the allowance for loan losses After transfer the property is carried at the

lower of cost or fair value less estimated selling expenses Adjustments to the carrying value of such

properties that result from subsequent declines in value are charged to operations in the period in which the

declines occur As of December 31 2013 and December 31 2012 the Bank had $946000 and $1440000

respectively in OREO The valuation allowance as of December 31 2013 was $280000 compared to

$237000 at December 312012
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Allowance for Loan Losses

Management makes continuing determination as to an appropriate provision from earnings to

maintain an allowance for loan losses that is adequate for probable
incurred losses in the loan portfolio In

making the determination management utilizes loan loss reserve analysis format which considers several

factors including loans criticized internally and/or externally by regulators and/or the Banks independent

loan review firm delinquent loans to include the amount and trends in delinquencies projected future losses

based upon historical data for loans which are currently performing as agreed growth in the various

segments of the Banks loan portfolio analytical review of loan charge-off experience other relevant

historical and
peer

statistical ratios and managements judgment with respect to local and general economic

conditions and their impact on the existing loan portfolio

The Bank has no credit exposure to foreign countries or foreign borrowers or to highly leveraged

transactions as defined by the Federal Reserve Board

Although the Bank uses its best judgment in underwriting each loan industry experience indicates

that portion of the Banks loans nevertheless will become delinquent Regardless of the underwriting

criteria utilized by banks losses may be experienced as result of many factors beyond their control

including among other things changes in market conditions affecting the value of collateral and unrelated

problems affecting the repayment capacity of the borrower

The following table sets forth year-end balances and changes in the allowance for loan losses and

certain ratios for the years ended December 2013 and 2012

At or For the Year At or For the Year

Ended December 31 Ended December31

2013 2012

Dollars in Thousands

222.478
Average recorded investment in loans outstanding

Balance at beginning of year

Charge-offs

Commercial

Real estale-nlortgage

Consumer

Total cliarge-offs

Recoveries

Commercial

Real estate-mortgage

Consumer

Total recoveries

Net charge-offs

Provision for loan losses

Balance at end of period

As percent of average loans

Net charge-offs annualized

Provision for loan losses annualized

Allowance for loan losses

Allowance as percentage of

each of the following

Total loans net of unearned

loan premiums and fees

Total non-accrual and delinquent loans 90 days

and over and still accruing

Total non-accrual loans

237933

2875

150

97
259

27

63

90

169
154

2860

34

81

115

106
166

2875

2815

92

129

221

0.07% 0.05%

0.06% 007%

1.20% 1.26%

1.18% 1.18%

189.28% 141.42%

216.67% 14734%
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The Banks management is unable to determine in what loan category
future charge-offs and recover

ies may occur However the following schedule sets forth the allocation of the allowance for loan losses

among various categories The allocation is based upon historical experience The entire allowance for loan

losses is available for probable incurred losses which may occur in any loan category

At December 31 2013 At December 31 2012

Percent Percent

of Loans of Loanìs

in Each in Each

Category Category

Amount to Loans Amount to Loans

Dollars in Thousands

Allocation of allowance

for loan losses

Commercial 2354 60% 2126 56%

Mortgage
187 34% 153 38%

Consumer 128 6% 223 6%

Unallocated 191 nla 373 n/a

Total 2860 100% 2875 100%

Securities Portfolio

The Bank maintains securities portfolio for the secondary application of funds as well as source

of liquidity The Bank classifies its securities as either available for sale or held to maturity and does

not hold any securities considered to be trading Held to maturity securities are those securities that the Bank

has the positive intent and the ability to hold until maturity All other securities not included in held to

maturity are classified as available for sale

Available for sale securities are recorded at fair value Held to maturity securities are recorded at

cost adjusted for the amortization or accretion of premiums or discounts Unrealized holding gains and

losses net of the related tax effect on available for sale securities are excluded from earnings and are

reported as accumulated other comprehensive income loss as separate component of shareholders equity

Transfers of securities between categories are recorded at fair value at the date of transfer The unrealized

holding gains or losses included in the separate component of equity for securities transferred from available

for sale to held to maturity are maintained and amortized into earnings over the remaining life of the security

as an adjustment to yield in manner consistent with the amortization or accretion of premium or discount

on the associated security decline in the fair value of any available for sale or held to maturity security

below cost deemed other than temporary is charged to earnings for the portion related to credit and the

portion related to other factors is recognized in other comprehensive income
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The following table sets forth the amortized cost and fair value of securities as of December 31

2013 and December 312012

At December 31 2013 At December 31 2012

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Available-for-sale Cost Value Cost Value

Dollars in Thousands

Debt Securities

U.S Agency 41241 42050 29938 33243

State Municipal 47314 47786 46779 49287

U.S Agency MBS 63787 63572 49352 51151

Corporate Bonds 1020 1044 1024 1062

Total Securities 153362 154452 127093 134743

At December 31 2013 At December 31 2012

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair

Held-to-maturity Cost Value Cost Value

Dollars in Thousands

Debt Securities

State Municipal 7031 7161 6267 6424

Total Securities 7031 7161 6267 6424

As of December 31 2013 26.0% of the Banks total securities portfolio was held iii U.S

Government Sponsored Agency Securities 39.4% in U.S Government Sponsored Agency mortgage-backed

securities 34.0% was held in municipal securities and 0.6% was held in US Corporate Bonds All

mortgage-backed securities are issued by or collateralized by U.S Government Sponsored Agencies and

backed by residential loans The total carrying value of securities increased from $141.0 million at

December 31 2012 to $161.5 million at December 31 2013 due to growth in deposits At December 31

2013 securities having fair value of $151.0 million were pledged as collateral for public funds and other

purposes as required or permitted by law According to the following tables 25.2% of the debt securities in

the portfolio have contractual maturities within five years Debt securities are shown at their stated maturity

dates for the purposes of this table

At December 31 2013

After After

Year But Years But

Within Within Within 10 After 10

Available-for-sale Year Years Years Years Total

Dollars in Thousands

Amortized Cost

U.S Agency 1000 15252 22957 2032 4124

State Municipal 2846 11804 27443 5221 47314

U.SAgencyMBS --- 970 11384 51433 63787

Corporate Bonds --- 524 496 1020

Total debt securities

at amortized cost 3846 28550 62280 58686 153362

23 Page 27 of 77



At December 312013

Alter After

Year But Years But

Within Within Within 10 After 10

Available-for-sale Year Years Years Years Total

Dollars in Thousands

Fair Value

U.S Agency 1004 15945 22947 2154 42050

State Municipal 2888 12363 27555 4980 47786

U.S Agency MB --- 1031 11682 50859 63572

Corporate Bonds --- 527 517 --- 1044

Total debt securities

at fair value 3892 29866 62701 57993 154452

Weighted average interest rate

of debt securities 2.52% 2.6 1% 2.55% 2.3 1% 2.47%

At December 31 2013

After After5

Year But Years But

Within Within Within 10 After 10

1-leld-to-maturity Year Years Years Years Total

Dollars in Thousands

Amortized Cost

State Municipal 5714 1162 155 7031

Total debt securities

at amortized cost 5714 1162 155 7.031

Fair Value

State Municipal 5744 1242 175 7161

Total debt securities

at fair value 5744 1242 175 7161

Weighted average interest rate

ofdebtsecurities 1.51% 3.46% 3.99% 1.88%

Deposits

The following table sets forth the breakdown of deposits as of December 31 2013 and December

31 2012 The Banks total deposits increased to $353.0 million at December 31 2013 from $330.0 million

at December 31 2012 The change was spread throughout the categories listed below

At December 31 At December 31

2013 2012

Dollars in Thousands

Non-interest bearing 83314 79997

Interest bearing NOW and Money Market 86951 92472

Savings 57783 60064

Time deposits 124904 97501

Total deposits 352952 330034
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Included in time deposits are certificates of deposit of $100000 and brokered deposits Brokered

deposits
amounted to $37044000 at December 31 2013 compared to $37821000 at December 31 2012

The following table breaks out these higher balance accounts and also the maturities of the categories Of the

Banks certificates of deposit of $100000 or more at December 31 2013 $28.0 million are from local public

entities such as counties school districts villages These deposits are considered stable source of funding

for the Bank

Certificates Certificates

$100000 or more at less than $100000 at

December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31

2013 2012 2013 2012

Maturing in Dollars in Thousands

months or less 43747 10002 9126 9130

3-12 months 15111 23560 25021 30735

Over 12 months 5854 4259 26045 19815

Total 64712 37821 60192 59680

Borrowings

The Bank has the ability to borrow money from the Federal Home Loan Bank of New York the

FHLB This source of funds is used as liquidity tool for the Bank At December 31 2013 the Bank had

$38.0 million in borrowings from the FHLB compared to $41.5 million at December 31 2012 The follow

ing is tabulation of outstanding advances from the FHLB as of December 31 2013 in thousands

Weighted Average

Maturity Year Amount Interest Rate

in Thousands

2014 25000 0.83%

2015 8500 1.31%

2016 4.500 0.97%

Total $38000 0.95%

Subordinated Debentures

On July 16 2007 Steuben Statutory Trust II trust formed by the Company completed pooled

private offering of $2000000 of trust preferred securities The Company issued $2062000 of subordinated

debentures to the trust in exchange for ownership of all common security of the trust and the proceeds of the

preferred securities sold by the trust The trust is not consolidated with the Companys financial statements

but rather the subordinated debentures are shown as liability The Companys investment in the common

stock of the trust was $62000 and included in Other Assets

The Company may redeem the subordinated debentures in whole or in part iii principal amount

with integral multiples of $1 on or after September 15 2012 at 100% of the principal amount plus accrued

and unpaid interest The subordinated debentures are also redeemable in whole or in part from time to time

upon occurrence of specific events defined within the trust indenture The Company has the option to defer

interest payments on the subordinated debentures from time to time for period not to exceed five

consecutive years

The subordinated debentures may be included in Tier capital with certain limitations applicable

under current regulatory guidelines and interpretations The subordinated debentures have variable rate of

interest equal to the three month London Interbatik Offered Rate LIBOR plus 1.55% This rate resets on

quarterly basis and was 1.793% at December 31 2013

25 Page 29 of 77



Interest Rate Risk Management

Asset/liability management involves managing the extent to which interest-sensitive assets and inter

est-sensitive liabilities are matched The Bank typically defines interest-sensitive assets and liabilities as

those that reprice within one year or less Maintaining an appropriate match is method of avoiding wide

fluctuations in net interest margin during periods of changing interest rates

The difference between interest-sensitive assets and interest-sensitive liabilities is known as the

interest sensitivity gap GAP positive GAP occurs when interest-sensitive assets exceed interest-

sensitive liabilities repricing in the same time periods and negative GAP occurs when interest-sensitive

liabilities exceed interest-sensitive assets repricing in the same time period negative GAP ratio suggests

that financial institution may be better positioned to take advantage of declining interest rates rather than

increasing interest rates and positive GAP ratio suggests the converse

The Bank attempts to manage its assets and liabilities in manner that stabilizes net interest income

and net economic value over broad range of interest rate environments Adjustments to the mix of assets

and liabilities are made periodically in an effort to give the Bank dependable and steady growth in net

interest income regardless of the behavior of general interest rates in the economy The Bank did take

$149000 in gains on sales of securities during 2012 compared to none during 2013 This was done to

restructure the investment portfolio to help mitigate the overall interest rate risk of the Bank The following

table presents summary of the Banks interest rate sensitivity at December 31 2013

Interest Rate Sensitivity at December 31 2013

Dollars in Thousands

Over year

One year through Over

or less years years Total

Interest-earn ma assets
Dollars in Thousands

Loans2 121587 94890 24119 240596

Securities 21910 76747 62826 161483

Interest bearing due from banks 5.987 --- --- 5.987

Total 149484 171637 86.945 408066

Interestbearing liabilities

Interest-bearing deposits 238392 31246 ---- 269.638

Borrowings
25000 13000 ---- 38000

Trust Preferred Securities 2.062 ---- ---- 2.062

Total 265454 44246 ---- 309700

Interest rate sensitivity gap

Interval 115970 127391 86945 98366

Cumulative 115970 11421 98366 N/A

Ratio of cumulative gap to total rate sensitive assets 28.42% 2.80% 24.1 l% N/A

Adjustable and floating-rate assets are included in the period in which interest rates are next scheduled to

adjust rather than in the period in which they are due and fixed-rate assets are included in the periods in which

they are anticipated to be paid based on amortization schedules and prepayment
histories

Balances have been reduced for non-accruing loans which amounted to 1320000 at December 31 2013

The Banks negotiable order of withdrawal NOW accounts statement savings accounts and money market

deposit accounts are generally subject to immediate withdrawal and are included in the one year or less

category

Certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis presented in the foregoing table For

example although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods to repricing they may

react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates Also the interest rates on certain types of assets

and liabilities may fluctuate in advance of changes in market interest rates while interest rates on other types

may lag behind changes in market rates Additionally certain assets such as adjustable-rate mortgage loans

have features which restrict changes in interest rate on short-term basis and over the life of the assets

Further in the event of change in interest rates prepayment and early withdrawal levels would likely

deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the table Finally the ability of many borrowers to

service their debt may decrease in the event of an interest rate increase
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Average Balances and Yields

The following table presents the total dollar amount of interest income from average interest-earning

assets and the resulting rates as well as the interest expense on average interest-bearing liabilities expressed

both in dollars and rates and the net interest margin Net interest margin is influenced by the level and

relative mix of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities All average
balances are daily average

balances Nonaccrual loans are included in average loan balances The average balance of investment

securities is presented at fair value for available for sale securities and amortized cost for held-to-maturity

securities

Twelve Months Ended December 31

2013 2012

Average Average Average Average

Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate

Dollars In Thousands

InterestEarning Assets

Loans 237502 11723 4.94% 227053 11808 5.20%

investment Securities 155050 3984 2.57% 142262 3922 2.76%

Other 1143 --- 0.03% 877 --- 0.01%

Total interest-Earning Assets 393695 15707 3.99% 370192 15730 4.25%

Non-earning Assets 31805 30489

Total Assets 425500 400681

InterestBearing Liabilities

NOW MMA and Savings Deposits 153462 45 0.03% 142272 41 0.03%

TimeDeposits 115408 595 0.52% 112921 831 0.74%

Borrowings 27659 349 1.26% 19250 409 2.12%

SubordinatedDcbefltUrCS 2062 38 1.84% 2062 108 5.24%

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities 298591 1027 0.34% 276505 1389 0.50%

Non-Interest Bearing Deposits 82594 78748

Other Non-Interest Bearing Liabilities 3192 5018

Shareholders Equity 41123 40410

Total Liabilities and

Shareholders Equity 425500 400681

Net Interest Income 14680 3.65% 14341 3.75%

Net Yield on Interest Earning Assets 3.73% 3.87%

Average Interest-Earning Assets to

Average Interest-Bearing Liabilities 131.85% 133.88%
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Rate/Volume Analysis

The following table describes the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in volume of

interest-related assets and liabilities have affected the Banks interest income and expense during the periods

indicated For each category of interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities information is

provided on changes attributable to changes in volume change in volume multiplied by prior year rate

changes in rate change in rate multiplied by prior year volume and total change in rate and volume

The combined effect of changes in both rate and volume has been allocated proportionately to the change due

to rate and the change due to volume

For Twelve Months Ended December 31

2013 vs 2012 2012 vs 201

Increase Decrease Total Increase Decrease Total

Due To Increase Due To Increase

Volume Rate Decrease Volume Rate Decrease

Dollars in Thousands

InterestEarning Assets

Fed Funds and Interest Bearing Deposits
---

U.S AgenciesMBS 203 191 12 93 409 316

State Municipal 127 89 38 259 141 118

Other Stocks and Bonds 28 16 12 29 35

Total Investments and Other 358 296 62 380 545 165

Commercial Loans 647 183 464 744 387 357

Mortgage Loans 64 265 329 335 477 142

Consumer Loans md FIlE Lines 78 142 220 207 158 365

Total Loans 505 590 85 872 1022 150

Total Interest-Earning Assets 863 886 23 1252 1567 315

InterestBearing Liabilities

NOW MMA and Savings Accounts

Time Deposits 18 254 236 18 290 272

Total Deposits 21 253 232 23 295 272

FHLB Advances 179 239 60 104 46 150

Subordinated Debentures 70 70 27 27

Total Borrowings 179 309 130 104 73 177

Total Interest-Bearing Liabilities 200 562 362 81 368 449

Increase Decrease in Net Interest Income 663 324 339 1333 1199 134
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REGULATION AND SUPERVISION

The references under this heading to various aspects of supervision and regulation are brief summar

ies which do not purport to be complete However to the knowledge of the Companys management the

summaries provide all material disclosure with respect to such supervision and regulations

The Bank is chartered under the Banking Law of New York State and as such is examined and

supervised by the New York State Department of Financial Services The Banks deposits are insured by the

FDIC to the extent provided in the Federal Deposit Insurance Act The Bank has elected not to be state

member bank of the Federal Reserve System Therefore as state non-member bank the FDIC is the

federal agency responsible for regulation of the Bank and the Bank is subject to examination and supervision

by the FDIC

As New York State chartered non-member bank the Bank is subject to numerous New York

State and federal laws regulating among other things the Banks conduct of its banking business including

loans deposits and trust business the capitalization and liquidity of the Bank the opening and closing of

branch offices the issuance of Bank securities and the Banks engagement in activities closely related to

banking

The Company is bank holding company within the meaning of the federal Bank Holding Company

Act and thus it is subject to the provisions of that Act This requires the Company to be registered as bank

holding company with the Federal Reserve Board which in turn requires it to tile periodic and annual reports

and other information concerning its own business operations and those of its subsidiaries with the Federal

Reserve Board Generally the Company is subject to the Federal Reserve Boards ongoing supervision and

examination

In addition under the Bank Holding Company Act bank holding company must obtain Federal

Reserve Board approval before it acquires directly or indirectly ownership or control of any voting shares of

second or subsequent bank if after such acquisition it would own or control more than 5% of such shares

unless it already owns or controls majority of such shares Federal Reserve Board approval must also be

obtained before bank holding company acquires all or substantially all of the assets of another bank or

merges or consolidates with another bank holding company Furthermore any acquisition by bank holding

company of more than 5% of the voting shares or of all or substantially all of the assets of bank located in

another state may not be approved by the Federal Reserve Board unless the laws of that second state

specifically authorize such an acquisition

The Bank Holding Company Act also prohibits bank holding company with certain limited

exceptions from acquiring or retaining direct or indirect ownership or control of more than 5% of the voting

shares of any company which is not bank or from engaging in any activities other than those of banking or

of managing or controlling banks or furnishing services to or performing services for its subsidiaries The

principal exception to these prohibitions involves certain specified activities which may be engaged in by the

Company and its subsidiaries including those activities which the Federal Reserve Board may find by order

or regulation to be so closely related to banking or managing or controlling banks as to be
proper

incident

thereto

bank holding company may not without providing 45-days prior notice to the Federal Reserve

Board purchase or redeem its own stock if the gross
consideration to be paid therefore when added to the

net consideration paid by the Company for all purchases or redemptions by the Company of its equity

securities within the preceding twelve months will equal 10% or more of the Companys consolidated net

worth

The Federal Reserve Board possesses cease and desist powers over bank holding companies and

their non-bank subsidiaries if their actions represent an unsafe or unsound practice or violation of law

In addition the Company is required under the New York State Banking Law to obtain the prior

approval of the New York State Department of Financial Services Board by three-fifths vote of all the

members thereof before the Company obtains directly or indirectly ownership or control of including the

power to vote more than 10% of the voting stock of second banking institution located in New York State

29 Page 33 ot77



In 1999 Congress passed the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act This law enables affiliations among banks

securities firms and insurance companies that would allow bank holding companies to offer their customers

broad range of non-banking services that are however financial in nature such as securities underwriting

insurance and merchant and investment banking In order to engage in these activities bank holding

company must quali with the Federal Reserve Board as financial holding company The Company has

qualified with the Federal Reserve as financial holding company

In 2010 the President signed into law the Dodd-Frank Act This law resulted in significant changes

to the banking industry The provisions that have received the most public attention have been those that

apply to larger financial institutions however the Dodd-Frank Act does contain numerous other provisions

that affect all banks and bank holding companies and will impact how the Company and the Bank handle

their operations The Dodd-Frank Act requires various federal agencies including those that regulate the

Company and the Bank to promulgate new rules and regulations and to conduct various studies and reports

for Congress The federal agencies are in the process of promulgating thee rules and regulations and have

been given significant discretion in drafting such rules and regulations Several of the provisions of the

Dodd-Frank Act may have the consequence of increasing the Banks expenses decreasing its revenues and

changing the activities in which it chooses to engage The specific impact of the Dodd-Frank Act on our

current activities or new financial activities we may consider in the future our financial performance and the

markets in which we operate will depend on the manner in which the relevant agencies develop and

implement the required rules and regulations and the reaction of market participants to these regulatory

developments

The Dodd-Frank Act includes provisions that among other things

Change the assessment base for federal deposit insurance from the amount of insured deposits to

consolidated assets less tangible capital eliminate the ceiling on the size of the Department

Insurance Fund DEF and increase the floor applicable to the size of the DIP

Make permanent the $250000 limit on deposits for federal deposit insurance retroactive to January

12008

Repeal the federal prohibitions on the payment of interest on demand deposits thereby permitting

depository institutions to pay interest on business transaction and other accounts

Centralize responsibility for consumer financial protection by creating new agency responsible for

implementing examining and enforcing compliance with federal consumer financial laws under the

newly created Consumer Financial Protection Bureau CFPB
Promulgate or revise regulations relating to the origination and servicing of consumer obligations

including residential mortgages

On July 10 2013 the FDIC adopted new rules for risk-based and leverage capital requirements for banks

The interim final rule implements revised definition of regulatory capital new common equity tier

minimum capital requirement higher minimum tier capital requirement and changes to the risk-based

capital rules In addition the interim final rule establishes limits on banks capital distribution and certain

discretionary bonus payments if the bank does not hold specified amount of common equity tier capital in

addition to the amount necessary to meet its minimum risk-based capital requirements The interim final rule

amends the methodologies for determining risk-weighted assets for all FDIC supervised institutions The

rule applies to all banks and to bank holding companies with assets of more than $500 million The final rule

will be effective on January 2015 It is anticipated that both the Company and the Bank will exceed the

measures to be considered well-capitalized

Future Legislation and Regulatory Initiatives

It is likely that additional legislation vill be considered by Congress that if enacted could have

significant impact on the operations of banks and bank holding companies including Steuben Trust

Corporation and the Bank
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PROPERTIES

As of December 31 2013 the Bank has branch office network of fourteen offices Of this total

the Bank owns eleven of such properties including that in which its main office is located in Hornell New

York The remaining branch locations are leased

USE OF PROCEEDS

The net proceeds from the sale of any shares of Common Stock by the Company to the Plan will be

used for the Companys general corporate purposes including investments in extensions of credit or

advances to the Bank

DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK

The Company is authorized to issue up to 500000 shares of Series Preferred Stock par
value

$10.00 per share and up to 5000000 shares of Common Stock par
value $1.00 per share

As of December 2013 1728385 shares of Common Stock were issued and the Company had

419 shareholders of record As of December 31 2013 the Company held 91184 shares of its Common

Stock in treasury

Common Stock

As of December 31 2013 1728385 shares of the Companys Common Stock were issued and

3271615 shares of Common Stock currently remain available for issuance at the discretion of the Board of

Directors These shares may be issued for such purposes as financings acquisitions stock dividends stock

splits employee incentive plans dividend reinvestment plans and other similar purposes However these

additional shares may also be used by the Board of Directors ifconsistent with its fiduciary responsibilities

to deter future attempts to gain control over the Company

The Companys dividend reinvestment and stock purchase plan is issued under Regulation of the

Securities Act of 1933 Currently Regulation is an exemption for public offerings not exceeding $5

million in any 12-month period This amount is the current requirement and may change from time to time

To rely on this exemption the Company has filed this offering statement with the SEC on Form 1-A

Voting Rights Each share of Common Stock is entitled to one vote on each matter submitted to

vote of the Companys Common shareholders Such shareholders do not have cumulative voting rights with

respect to any matters to be voted upon including the election of Directors

Dividends Under the New York Business Corporation Law dividends are payable out of surplus

oniy and may be declared and paid by the Company except when the Company currently is insolvent or

would thereby be made insolvent In addition under the New York Banking Law the Bank may only pay

dividends to the Company up to an amount equal to its net profits for that year combined with its retained net

profits of the preceding two years At December 31 2013 the Banks dividend paying ability was

$5361000

The Company paid no dividends during the twelve months ended December 2013 versus $1.99

per share during the year ended December 31 2012 Included in the 2012 amount was special dividend of

$1.00 per share paid on December 27 2012 In the past dividends have been paid on the Companys

Common Stock on quarterly basis and the usual quarterly dividend payment dates have been in February

May August and November each year

Liquidation Rights In the event of Liquidation holders of the Companys Common Stock will be

entitled to receive pro rata any corporate assets remaining for distribution after all other corporate debts and

obligations are satisfied

Preemptive Rights Holders of the Companys Common Stock do not have any preemptive rights

with respect to any additional issuances by the Company of its capital stock or other securities
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Provisions for Coiporate Defense The Companys Certificate of Incorporation contains several

provisions designed to assure continuity of management and to discourage sudden changes in control of the

Board of Directors For example it states that the affirmative vote of 75% of the entire Board of Directors or

75% of the Common Shares entitled to vote is required either to amend the provisions
in the Bylaws

regulating the number and qualifications of Directors and any restrictions on Directors or remove

Director without cause

Further under the New York Business Corporation Law and in the absence of any additional

requirements imposed by corporations certificate of incorporation mergers consolidations and most other

business combinations must be approved by two-thirds of the outstanding voting common shares Thus

bidder could acquire two-thirds of the outstanding common stock through any combination of private

purchase open market purchase or tender offer and then complete the acquisition by business combination

such as merger sale of assets or other transaction and force out the remaining shareholders However the

Companys Certificate of Incorporation requires the affirmative vote of either 80% of the entire Board of

Directors and 66 2/3% of the outstanding Common Shares entitled to vote or 75% of the outstanding

Common Shares entitled to vote in favor of either any merger or consolidation of the Company or any

subsidiary under the terms of which the Common Shareholders of the Company shall after the transaction

own less than 75% of the resulting entity or ii the sale of all or substantially alT of the assets of the

Company or any subsidiary

In addition the Companys Certificate of Incorporation requires any Business Combination as

defined in the Certificate with Major Stockholder also therein defined to be approved either by the

Board of Directors prior to the Major Stockholder involved in the Business Combination becoming Major

Stockholder or by unanimous approval of the Board of Directors prior to the Major Stockholder

becoming such as well as approval by majority of the Continuing Directors as defined in the Certificate

of Incorporation of the Business Combination or3 by 75% of the total number of Continuing Directors or

by 75% of the outstanding Common Stock of the Company as well as 75% of the outstanding Common

Stock owned by persons
other than any Major Stockholder

Notwithstanding the requirements described in the preceding paragraph the Companys Certificate

of Incorporation provides that no Business Combination with Major Stockholder may be approved unless

the fair market value of the consideration received by the Companys Common Shareholders is not less than

the highest per
share price paid by the Major Stockholder for the Companys stock during the two years

preceding the announcement of the proposed Business Combination

For the purpose of the regulation of Business Combinations in the Companys Certificate of

Incorporation
the term Business Combination is defined to include any merger or consolidation with or

sale of assets to directly or indirectly Major Stockholder or an affiliate or associate of Major

Stockholder the term Major Stockholder is defined to include any person which together with its affiliates

and associates is the beneficial owner of 10% or more of the outstanding shares of voting stock of the

Company and the term Continuing Directors is defined to include members of the Board of Directors prior

to the time that Major Stockholder becomes Major Stockholder

The Certificate of Incorporation authorizes the Directors of the Company in taking any action

including actions on Business Combinations to consider without limitation both the long term and the

short term interests of the Company and its shareholders employees customers creditors and the

communities in which it operates

While the Company believes that the provisions described above will best serve the interests of its

shareholders the provisions could also discourage takeover attempts which some shareholders might deem

to be in their interest and may tend to perpetuate existing management

Other Matters American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC Brooklyn New York is the

Companys transfer agent The shares of the Companys Common Stock do not have any redemption or

conversion provisions applicable thereto and under New York Business Corporation Law Section 630

during any time in which the shares of the Companys Common Stock are not listed on national securities

exchange or regularly quoted in an over-the-counter market by one or more members of national or an
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affiliated securities association the ten largest common shareholders of the Company will jointly and

severally be personally
liable for all debts wages and salaries due and owing to any of the Companys

laborers servants or employees other than contractors for services performed by them for the Company

Except as indicated above no holders of the Companys Common Stock vilI be personally liable for the

debts of the Company solely by virtue of their ownership or control of shares of Common Stock

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Directors and executive officers of the Company and key officers of the Bank as of December

31 2013 are as follows

Current

Position with Principal Occupation During Past

Company Director Five Years and/or Positions Held

Name or Banks Since with the Conippnv for Bank

Robert Blades Jr 66 Director 1985 1982 2010 President ofA.L Blades and Sons

Inc bridge and road contractor

2010 Present President of Blades Holding

Company Inc

Brenda Copeland 62 President Chief 2003 2003 Present President CEO of Steuben Trust

Executive Officer Corporation and Steuben Trust Company

and Director

Michael Davidson 58 Director 2008 2003 Prescnt President Davidson Bros Inc

Furniture Retailer

Charles Edmondson 71 Director 2005 2000 Present President Alfred University

Jack Emrick 59 Senior Vice N/A 1992 Present Senior Vice President and Retail

President and Bank Manager-Steuben Trust Company

Retail Bank Manager

Stoner Horey 67 Director 1992 2003 -2008 Director of Geriatrics and Extended

Care at Bath VA Medical Center

20092011 Hospitalist The Exigence Group

2011 Present Physician Delphi Medical Services

Sue Lacy 58 Senior Vice N/A 1988 Present Human Resources Manager

President and Steuben Trust Company

Human Resources

Manager

Victor Myers 66 Director 2011 2005 2010 SVP Commercial Agricultural

Loan Officer Steuben Trust Company

2011 Present Retired

James Nicoloff 59 Executive Vice N/A 1992 Present Executive Vice President and Chief

President and Chief Financial Officer-Steuben Trust Corporation and

Financial Officer Steuben Trust Company

Charles Oliver 71 Director 1992 Presently is and has been for the past years

General Manager

Charles Oliver Son farm machinery dealer

Amanda Parker 49 Director 2012 Presently is and has been for the past years-

CPA/Partner Bonadlo Company
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Current

Position with Principal Occupation During Past

Company Director Five Years and/or Positions Held

Name gg. or Bank Since with the Corn panv or Bank

Amber Phelps 47 Executive Vice N/A 1995 2004- Assistant Vice President Information

President IT Systems Systems Officer-Steuben Trust Company

and Operations Manager 2004 2006 Vice President Information Systems

Officer-Steuben Trust Company

2006 2012 Senior Vice President Manager

Of Information Technology Department-Steuben

Trust Company

2012-Present Executive Vice President IT Systems

and Operations Manager-Steuben Trust Company

David Shults 70 Chairman of 1971 Presently is and has been for the past years

the Board and Partner Shults Shults Attorneys

Director General Counsel to Bank

Eric Shults 71 Director 1974 Presently is and has been for thc pastS years

Partner Shults Shults Attorneys

General Counsel to Bank

Sherry Walton 61 Director 1999 Retired Community Volunteer

Natalie Willoughby 59 Senior Vice N/A 2002 2005 Vice President Relationship

Presidcnt and Manager The Private Bank of Bank of America

Manager of Trust Rochester NY

Financial Services 08/2005 06/2006 Vice President and Manager

Department
of Trust Financial Services Department-Steuben

Trust Company

6/2006 Present Senior Vice President and

Manager of Trust Financial Services Department-

Steuben Trust Company

Gregory Wood 53 Senior Vice President N/A 2005-2009 VP Commercial Lending Bank olCastile

Commercial Loan 2010 Present Senior Vice President Commercial

Manager Lending Steuben Trust Company

Each of the officers of the Company and of the Bank serves at the discretion of its respective Board

of Directors All Directors hold office for one-year term until the next annual meeting of shareholders and

until their successors are elected and have been qualified
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COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AN OFFICERS

Compensation of Directors

All Directors of the Company are also directors of the Bank During 2013 the Bank held 12 Board

meetings and 28 Committee meetings Beginning in May 2013 directors received $575 for each Board

meeting attended and $350 for each Committee meeting attended Directors also receive $4200 retainer

fee $2000 additional for the board chairman plus an additional $500 for the chairs of the Audit Personnel

Loan Trust and Scholarship committees if they attend at least 60% of the Board meetings

Executive Compensation

The following table sets forth the aggregate
annual remuneration that was paid for the

year ending

December 31 2013 for each of the five highest paid persons
who were then officers of the Company or the

Bank

Capacities in Which Remuneration Aggregate

Name of Individual Received Remuneration

Brenda Copeland President Chief Executive Officer $520271

James Nicoloff Executive Vice President Treasurer $172025

and Chief Financial Officer

Gregory Wood Senior Vice President and Commercial $160303

Loan Manager of Steuben Trust Company

Amber Phelps Executive Vice President $132391

IT Systems Operations Manager of

Steuben Trust Company

Hans Kunze Senior Vice President and Commercial $132125

Loan Officer and Farm Department

Manager of Steuben Trust Company

Under the Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement Deferral Agreement with the Company

any officer with title of senior vice president or above is eligible to participate in the plan and have por

tion of their annual compensation deferred Such deferral amounts are placed in an interest-bearing account

and will be repaid to the participants in accordance with the terms of their Deferral Agreement

On April 15 2010 the Companys shareholders approved the adoption of share based

compensation plan the Steuben Trust Corporation 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan the c1ncentive

Plan for all employees The incentive Plan permits the granting of non-qualified and incentive stock

options and restricted stock grants and reserves 80000 shares of the Companys stock for issuance

thereunder

The Incentive Plan is administered by committee of the Board of Directors which is responsible for

designating employees to receive awards the type and number of awards granted and establishing the terms

and conditions of the awards Option awards are granted with an exercise price at least equal to the market

price of the Companys common stock at the date of grant those option awards may have vesting periods

ranging up to ten years The fair value of each option is estimated on the date of grant using closed form

option valuation Black-Scho les model
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF MANAGEMENT ANt CERTAIN SHAREHOLDERS

The following table sets forth information concerning the number of shares of Common Stock bene

ficially owned directly or indirectly as of December 31 2013 by each of the three highest paid persons

who were then officers and/or Directors of the Company ii all executive officers and Directors of the

Company as group and iii each shareholder that owns more than 10% of the Companys Common Stock

Name and Address of Number of Common Shares Percent of

Beneficial Owner Beneficially Owned Class

Brenda Copeland 12825.962

One Steuben Square

Hornell New York 14843

James Nicoloff 4300.000

One Steuben Square

Hornell New York 14843

Gregory Wood 1400.000

One Steuben Square

Hornell New York 14843

David Shults 245967.764 14.9

Seneca Street

Hornell New York 14843

All Directors and Executive Officers 404997.649 24.6

as Group 19 persons including those

named above

Indicates less than 1% of the Companys issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock

The securities beneficially owned by an individual have been determined in accordance with the

definitions of beneficial ownership affiliate and associate as set forth in SEC Rules 3d-3 and 2b-2

under the Exchange Act and may include securities owned by or for the individuals spouse and minor

children and any other relative who has the same home as well as securities as to which the individual has or

shares voting or investment power or has the right to acquire beneficial ownership within sixty days after

December 31 2013 Beneficial ownership may be disclaimed as to certain of the securities

Includes 12215.527 shares owned directly by Ms Copeland of which 900.000 are shares in

underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2013 and 900.000 exercisable on or after February

17 2014 and 610.435 shares owned by Ms Copelands spouse over which she has voting control as the

holder of power-of-attorney

Includes 800.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2012

Includes 600.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2013

Includes 600.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2014

Includes 800.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after April 22013

Includes 200.000 shares in underlying option exercisable on or after February 17 2012

Includes 300.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2013

Includes 300.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after February 17 2014

Includes 400.000 shares in underlying options exercisable on or after April 2013

Includes 81203.410 shares owned by Mr Shults directly ii 21104.181 shares owned by Mr

Shults spouse iii 143660.173 shares owned by members of Mr Shults family over which he has

voting control as the holder of power-of-attorney
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The following table sets forth the shares awarded active officers under the Incentive Plan as of December 31

All Executive Offic

ers as Group per

sons including those

named above

All Executive Offic

ers as Group per

sons including those

named above

All Executive Offic

ers as Group per

Sons including those

named above

Number of shares of

Common Stock

1200

900

900

1200

900

900

1200

900

900

800

600

600

800

600

600

800

600

600

400

300

300

400

300

300

200

200

200

200

200

3200

2400

2400

3320

2570

2570

320

320

Vesting Dates

$26.00 February 17 2012

February 17 2013

February 17 2014

$27.00 April 2013

April 2014

April 22015

$3000 May 12014

May 12015

May 12016

$26.00 February 17 2012

February 17 2013

February 17 2014

$27.00 April 2013

April 22014

April 22015

$30.00 May 12014

May 12015

May 12016

May 2017

May 12018

$26.00 February 17 2012

February 17 2013

February 17 2014

April 22013

April 2014

April 22015

$30.00 May 2014

May 12015

May 12016

May 12017

May 12018

Exercise Price Shares

2013

Name of Holder

Brenda Copeland

James Nicoloff

Gregory Wood

$26.00 February 17 2012

February 17 2013

February 17 2014

$27.00 April
2013

April 2014

April 2015

$30.00 May 12014

May 12015

May 12016

1200

1200

200

1400

12003400 $27.00

2550

2550
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CERTAIN TRANSACTIONS

No consideration monetary or otherwise including any formal or informal agreement relating to the

payment of compensation in any form has been given or offered to any shareholder officer or Director of

the Company or the Bank or to any member of the immediate family of any of such persons in connection

with the shares offered hereby

The Companys officers and Directors and members of their immediate families and businesses in

which these individuals may hold controlling interests are customers of the Bank and it is anticipated that

such parties will continue to be Bank customers in the future Credit transactions with these parties are

subject to review by the Banks Board of Directors and/or Committee thereof All outstanding loans and

extensions of credit by the Bank to these parties were made in the ordinary course of business on

substantially the same terms and conditions including interest rates and collateral requirements as those

prevailing at the time for comparable transactions with other persons and in the opinion of management did

not involve more than the normal risk of noncollectibility or present other unfavorable features

LITIGATION

The Company is involved in legal proceedings
in the normal course of business none of which are

expected to have material adverse impact on the financial condition or results of the operations of the

Company

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

The Companys principal
executive offices are located at One Steuben Square Hornell New York

telephone 607 324-5010

The Company has filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission SEC Regulation

Offering Statement on Form 1-A under the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securities Act relating

to the shares of Common Stock offered hereby Offering Statement This Offering Circular does not

contain all of the information set forth in the Offering Statement and the exhibits thereto certain portions of

which have been omitted pursuant to the rules and regulations of the SEC

The Offering Statement may be inspected and copied at prescribed rates at the public reference room

maintained by the SEC at 450 Fifth Street NW Room 1024 Washington D.C 20549 Copies of this

material may also be obtained at prescribed rates by writing to the SEC Public Reference Section 450 Fifth

Street NW Washington D.C 20549

NO PERSON HAS BEEN AUTHORIZED TO GIVE ANY INFORMATION OR TO MAKE

ANY REPRESENTATION NOT CONTAINED IN THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR AND IF GWEN

OR MADE SUCH INFORMATION OR REPRESENTATION MUST NOT BE RELIED UPON AS

HAYING BEEN AUTHORIZEI BY THE COMPANY NEITHER THE DELIVERY OF THIS

OFFERING CIRCULAR NOR ANY SALE MADE HEREUNDER SHALL UNDER ANY

CIRCUMSTANCES CREATE ANY IMPLICATION THAT THERE HAS BEEN NO CHANGE IN

THE BUSINESS AFFAIRS OF THE COMPANY SINCE THE DATE OF THIS OFFERING

CIRCULAR THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE AN OFFER TO SELL OR

SOLICITATION OF AN OFFER TO BUY ANY OF THE SECURITIES OFFERED HEREBY IN

ANY JURISDICTION OR TO ANY PERSON TO WHOM IT IS UNLAWFUL TO MAKE SUCH

OFFER

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR CONTAINS ALL OF THE REPRESENTATIONS BY THE

COMPANY CONCERNING THIS OFFERING AND NO PERSON SHALL MAKE DIFFERENT OR

BROADER STATEMENTS THAN THOSE CONTAINED HEREIN INVESTORS ARE

CAUTIONED NOT TO RELY UPON ANY INFORMATION NOT EXPRESSLY SET FORTH IN

THIS OFFERING CIRCULAR
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NOTICE TO RESfDENTS OF PENNSYLVANIA

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION COMPANY COMMON SHAREHOLDERS WHO ARE

RESIDENTS OF PENNSYLVANIA ARE WELCOME TO ENROLL AND PARTICIPATE IN THE

COMPANYS DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN PLAN TUE

COMPANY IS CLAIMING AN EXEMPTION FROM REGISTRATION IN PENNSYLVANIA

UNDER SECTION 203n OF THE PENNSYLVANIA SECURITIES ACT OF 1972 HOWEVER TO

COMPLY WITH THE REGULATIONS OF THE PENNSYLVANIA SECURITIES COMMISSION

PENNSYLVANIA RESIDENTS WHO PARTICIPATE IN THE PLAN ARE NOT PERMITTED TO

MAKE VOLUNTARY ADDITIONAL CASH PURCHASES OF THE COMPANYS COMMON

SHARES UNDER THE PLAN

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR AN LEGAL PROVIDER

The consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation and subsidiaries as of December

31 2013 and 2012 and for the years then ended have been included herein in the Form i-A Offering

Statement The consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation as of Dec 2013 and 2012

and the years
then ended have been audited by Crowe 1-lorwath LLP independent auditors

tJnderberg Kessler LLP Rochester New York vill issue legal opinion concerning the validity

of the common stock being sold in this Offering
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Page

Independent Auditors Report F-2
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Crowe Horwath
Crowe Harwath LLP

nepedbe Member Cmwe HorwoIfl Intmtioal

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Board of Directors and Shareholders

Steuben Trust Corporation

Homell New York

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation which comprise

the consolidated statements of financial condition as of December 31 203 and 2012 and the related consolidated

statements of income comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash flows for the years then ended and

the related notes to the financial statements

Managements Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America this Includes the design

implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated

financial statements that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error

Auditors Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits We

conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are tree from material misstatement

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment including the

assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements whether due to fraud or

error In making those risk assessments the auditor considers Internal control relevant to the entitys preparation and

fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in

the circumstances but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys internal

control Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of

accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management as well

as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for our audit

opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the

financial position of Steuben Trust Corporation as of December 31 2013 and 2012 and the results of their operations

and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America

Crowo Horwath LLP

Cleveland Ohio

February 2014

F-2
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition

December 312013 and 2012

In thousands except share amounts

2013 2012

ASSETS

Cash and due from banks 13913 15008

Securities available-for-sale 154452 134743

Securities held-to-maturity fair value $7161 in 2013 and $6424 In 2012 7031 6267

Loans net of allowance of 52860 in 2013 and $2875 in 2012 239513 240476

Premises and equipment net 7181 7497

Accrued interest receivable 1448 1446

intangible assets net
95 102

Bank owned life insurance 8791 8534

Otherassets
6418 5416

TOTALASSETS 438842 419489

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Non-interestbearing 83314 79997

interest bearing
269638 250037

Total deposits
352952 330034

Subordinated debentures 2062 2062

Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank 38000 41500

Accrued interest payable
85 97

Other liabilities
3383 5073

Total liabilities 396482 378766

SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY

Common stock- $1 par value 5000000 shares authorized

1728385 shares issued in 2013

1728385 shares issued in 2012 1728 1728

Additional paid-in capital
4502 4469

Undivided profits
38188 33464

Accumulated other comprehensive income/loss 131 2559

Treasury stock at cost 91184 shares In 2013 76300 shares in 2012 2234 1811

Total Steuben Trust Corporation Shareholders Equity 42053 40409

Non-controlling interest
307 314

Total equity 42360 40723

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY 438842 419489

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements

F-3

Page 46 of 77



Consolidated Statements of Income

December31 2013 and 2012

In thousands except share amounts

2013 2012

INTEREST INCOME

Loans 1L723 11808

Taxable securities 2358 2334

Tax Exempt securities 1626 1588

Total interest income 15707 15730

INTEREST EXPENSE

Savings and time deposits 640 872

Federal Home Loan Bank advances 349 409

Subordinated debentures 38 108

Total interest expense 1027 1389

Net Interest income 14680 14341

Provision for loan losses 154 166

Net interest income after provision for loan losses 14526 14175

OTHER INCOME

Service charges 2768 2600

Trust and Investment services income 967 868

Gain on sale of investments and other assets 353 289

Other 743 789

Total other income 4831 4546

OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries and employee benefits 7617 7793

Occupancy 826 825

Depreciation and amortIzation 496 458

Marketing and public relations 154 167

Office supplies printing postage and courier 402 433

Professional fees 186 204

Furniture and equipment maintenance 556 587

Other operating 2528 2229

Total operating expenses 12765 12696

income before income taxes 6592 6025

INCOMETAXES 1840 1626

NET INCOME 4752 4399

Less Net income attributable to non-controlling interest 28 28

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION 4724 4371

BasicEarningsPerShare 2.88 2.66

Diluted Earnings Per Share 2.87 2.66

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income

December31 2013 and 2012

In thousands except share amounts
2013 2012

Net Income
4.752 4399

Other comprehensive income

Unrealized gains/losses on securities

Unrealized holding gain/loss arising during the period 6560 206

Reclassification adjustment for gains/losses Included In net Income 149

Tax effect 2538 22

Net of tax 4022 35

Oefined benefit pension plans

Net gain/loss arising during period 1947 1.058

Reclassification adjustment for amortization of prior service cost

and net gain/Closs included in net periodic pension cost 225 274

Curtailment
1376

Tax effect
840 229

Netof tax 1332 363

Total other comprehensive incorne/loss 2690 398

Comprehensive Income 2062 4797

Consolidated Statements of Shareholders 8qulty

VCSrS Ended December 31 2013 and 2012

In thousands except share data and per share amounts

AddItlonI Non-

Common Paid-in Controlling Undivided

Stock Capital intereSt Proflts

Accumulated

Other

Comprehensive
income Loss

BALANCE DECEMBER 31.2011

Net income

Other comprehensive income

1707 3865 314 32358

28 4371

2161

398

1318 39087

4.399

398

Cath dividends paid

S1.99 per Common share

Stock based compensation plan expense

Stock options exerciSed including tax benefit

1200 Common shares

11

28 3265 3293

11

Treasury shares purchased
30694 CommOn thareS

806 804

Stock sold

33.331 Common shares 21 593 280 894

BALANCE DECEMBER31 2012 1728 4469 314 33464 2.559 1.811 40723

Not income 28 4.724 4.752

Other comprehensive income 2690 2.690

Cash dividends paid

$0.00 per Common share 28 28

Stock based cornpensaflon plan expense 13 13

Stock options exercised including tax benefit

1400CommOrtshareS 11
27 38

Non-controlling IntereSt shares retired

14 Preferred shares

Treasury shares purchased

173g4Commonshares
471 471

Stock sold

1110 Common shares
21 30

BALANCE DECEMBER31 2013 1728 4S02 307 38188 131 2234 42360

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial Statements

F-S

Treasury

Stock Total

51 31
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Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Years Ended December31 2013 and 2012

In thousands

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Provision for loan losses

Subsequent write down of other real estate

Gain on sale of securities

Amortization/accretion on securities available for sale

Gain on sale of loans held for sale

Loss on sale of other real estate

Stock based compensation plan expense

Deferred income tax expense

Net principal disbursed on loans held for sale

Proceeds from sale of loans held for sale

Change in

Accrued interest receivable

Other assets

Accrued interest payable

Other liabilities

Net cash provided by operatinq activities

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Cash paid during the year tar

Interest

income taxes

Non-cash investing activities

Transfer from loans to Other Real Estate Owned

See accompanyIng notes to consolidated financial statements

F-6

1039

1902

212

1453

1903

154

2013 2012

4752 4399

496

154

134

944

353
10

13

118

10973

11326

331
12

543

6819

458

166

61

149
914

140

11

104
3934
4074

52

1152
64

105

4487

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from sales of securities available for sale 4153

Proceeds from maturities and redemptions of securities available for sale 5341 7657

Principal payments on securities available for sale 14018 15250

Purchases of securities available for sale 46573 32132

Purchases of securities held to maturity 5734 5706

Proceeds from maturities and redemptions of securities held to maturity 4971 2719

Loan originations and payments net 597 22014

Proceeds from sale of other real estate 593

Capital expenditures
107 1320

Net cash used in investing activities 26894 31393

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net Increase in deposits
22918 15599

Repayment of Federal Home Loan Bank advances 44000 61750

Proceeds from Federal Home Loan Bank advances 40500 74000

Common stock issued dividend reinvestment plan 582

Treasury stock sold
68 343

Treasury stock purchased
471 804

Retirement of non-controlling shares

Divid ends paid 28 3293

Net cash provided by financing activities 18980 24677

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1095 7229

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 15008 17237

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 13913 15008

2013 2012
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

ORGANIZATION

Steuben Trust Corporation the Company is both bank holding

company and financial holding company subject to regulation by
certain federal and state agencies including the Federal Deposit

insurance Corporation The Company through its bank subsidiary

Steuben Trust Company the Bank provides financial services to

individuals and businesses primarily in Steuben Allegany Livingston

Monroe and Wyoming counties in New York State The Company also

has an Investment in subsidiary trust Steuben StatutoryTrust II that is

not consolidated note 15

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies of the Company conform to accounting

principles generally accepted In the United States of America The

following Is description of the significant accounting policies followed

by the Company

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company Include the

accounts of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary Steuben

Trust Company All material intercompany accounts and transactions

have been eliminated in consolidation

Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and

disclosure through February 2014 which is the date the financial

statements were available to be issued

Use of Estimates

To prepare financIal statements in conformity with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America management makes

estimates and assumptions based on available information These

estimates and assumptions affect the amounts reported in the financial

statements and the dIsclosures provided and actual results could differ

The allowance for loan losses and fair value of financial instruments are

particularly subject to change

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of reporting cash flows cash and cash equivalents include

cash on hand amounts due from banks and federal funds sold Net

cash flows are reported for customer loan and deposit transactions

Securities

The Company classlfie5 Its debt securities as either available for sale or

held to maturity Held to maturity securities are those debt securities

carried at amortized cost that the Company has thepositive intent and

the ability to hold until maturity All other securities not Included In

held to maturity are classIfied as available for sale when the security

might be sold before maturity Securities available for sale are carried at

fair value with unrealized holding gains and losses reported in other

comprehensive income net of tax

Management evaluates securities for other-than-temporary impairment

OTTI on at least quarterly basis and more frequently when

economic or market conditions warrant such an evaluation For

securities in an unrealized loss position management considers the

extent and duration of the unrealized loss and the financial condition

and near-term prospects of the issuer Management also assesses

whether it intends to sell or it is more likely than not that it will be

required to sell security in an unrealized loss position before recovery

of its amortized cost basis If either of the criteria regarding intent or

requirement to sell is met the entire difference between amortized cost

and fair value is recognized as Impairment through earnings For debt

securities that do not meet the aforementioned criteria the amount of

impairment is split
into two components as follows OTTI related to

credit loss which must be recognized in the income statement and

OTTI related to otherfactors which Is recognized In other comprehensive

income The credit loss is defined as the difference between the present

value of the cash flows expected to be collected and the amortized cost

basis For equity securities the entire amount of impairment is

recognized through earnings

Interest income includes interest earned on the securities and the

amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts as an adjustment

to yield using the effective interest method without anticipating

prepayments except for mortpage
backed securities where

prepayments are anticipated Realized gains and losses on securities

are recognized on the trade date are Included in earnings and are

calculated using the specific iidentification method for determining the

cost of securities sold

Loans

Loans that management has the intent and ability to hold for the

foreseeable future or until maturity or payoff are reported at the

principal balance outstanding net of purchase premiums and

discounts deferred loan fees and costs and an allowance for loan

losses Interest income is accrued on the unpaid principal balance

Loan origination fees net of certain direct oriinatlon costs are

deferred and recognized in interest income using the level yield

method without anticipating prepayments

Interest Income on residential commercial real estate construction

and other and commercial loans is discontinued at the time the loan is

90 days delinquent unless the loan is well-secured and in process of

collection Consumer loans including auto and other are typically

charged off no later than 120 days past due Past due status is based on

the contractual terms of the loan In all cases loans are placed on

nonaccrual or charged off at an earlier date if collection of principal or

interest is considered doubtful Nonaccrual loans and loans past due

90 days still on accrual include both smaller balance homogeneous

loans that are collectively evaluated for impairment and Individually

classified impaired loans loan is moved to non-accrual status in

accordance with the Companys policy typically after 90 days of non

payment

For all classes of loans interest accrued but not received for loans

placed on nonaccrual is reversed against interest income Interest

received on such loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost

recovery method until qualifying for return to accrual Loans are

returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts

contractually due are brought current and future payments are

reasonably assured

Allowance for Loan Losses

The allowance for loan losses is valuation allowance for probable

incurred credit losses The Companys provision for loan losses charged

to operations is based upon managements evaluation of the loan

portfolio Loan losses are charged against the allowance when

management believes the uncollectibility
of loan balance is

confirmed Subsequent recoveries if any are credited to the allowance

The allowance for loan losses is maintained at an amount management

deems adequate to provide for probable incurred loan losses

considering the character of the loan portfolio economIc conditions

analysis of specific loans and historical loss experience While

management uses available information to recognize losses on loans

future additions to the allowance may be necessary based on changes

in economic conditions In addition various regulatory agencies as an

integral part of their examination process periodically review the

Companys allowance for loan losses Such agencies may require the

Company to recognize
additions to the allowance based on their

judgments about information available to them at the time of their

examinations Allocations of the allowance may be made for specific

loans but the entire allowance is available for any loan that In

managements judgment should be charged off The allowance

consists of specific and general components The specific component

relates to loans that are individually classified as impaired

loan is impaired when based on current information and events it is

probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due

according to the contractual terms of the loan agreement Loans for

which the terms have been modified resulting in concession and for

which the borrower is experiencing
financial difficulties are considered

troubled debt restructurings and classified as impaired

Factors considered by management in determining Impairment
include payment status collateral value and the probability of

collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due Loans

that experience Insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls

generally are not classified as impaired Management determines the

significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on case-by-

case basis taking into consideration all of the circumstances

surrounding the loan and the borrower including the length of the

delay the reasons for the delay the borrowers prior payment record

and tFe amount of the shortfall in relation to the principal and interest

owed

Commercial and commercial real estate loans over $100000 are

individually evaluated for impairment If loan Is Impaired portion of

the allowance is allocated so that the loan is reported net at the

present value of estimated future cash flows using the loans existing

rate or at the fair value of collateral if repayment is expected solely from

the collateral Large groups of smaller balance homogeneous loans

such as consumer and residential real estate loans are collectively

evaluated for impairment and accordingly they are not separately

Identified for impairment disclosures

F-7
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Notes To Consolidated Financial St atemeri ts

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Troubled debt restructurings are separately identified for impairment

disclosures and are measured at the present value of estimated future

cash flows using the loans effective rate at inception If troubled debt

restructuring is considered to be collateral dependent loan the loan is

reported net at the fair value of the collateral For troubled debt

restructurings that subsequently default the Company determines the

amount of reserve in accordance with the accounting policy for the

allowance for loan losses

The general component covers non-impaired loans and is based on

historical loss experience adjusted forcurrent factors The historical loss

experience is determined by portfolio segment and is based on the

actual 1055 history experienced by the Company over the most recent

five years This actual loss experience Is supplemented with other

economic factors based on the risks present for each portfolio segment

These economic factors include consideration of the following levels

of and trends irs delinquencies and impaired loans levels of and trends

in charge-offs and recoveries trends In volume and terms of loans

effects of any changes in risk selection and underwriting standards

otherchangesin lending policies procedures and practices
ability and depth of lending management and other relevant staff

national arid local economic trends and conditions Industry conditions

and effects of changes in credit concentrations

description of each segment of the loan portfolio along with the risk

characteristics of each segment is included below

CommercialLaans Commercial loans are made to businesses generally

located within the primary market area Those loans are generally

secured by business equipment inventory accounts receivable and

other business assets In underwriting commercial loans we consider

the net operating income of the company the debt service ratio and

the financial strength expertise and credit history of the business

owners and/or guarantors Because payments on commercial loans are

dependent on successful operation of the business enterprise

repayment of such loans may be subject to greater extent to adverse

conditions in the economy We seek to mitigate these risks through

underwriting policies
which require such loans to be qualified at

origination on the basis of the enterprises financial performance and

the financial strength of the business owners and/or guarantors

Commercial Real Estate Loans We originate commercial real estate

loan5 that are secured by properties used for business purposes where

the primary source of repayment is derived from rental Income

associated with the property These properties include office buildings

and retail facilities generally located within our primary market area

Underwriting policies provide that commercial real estate loans are irs

amounts less than the appraised value of the property In underwriting

commercial real estate loans we consider the appraised value and net

operating income of the property the debt service ratio and the

property owners and/or guarantors financial strength expertise and

credit history Because payments on loans secured by commercial real

estate properties are dependent on successful operation or

management of the properties repayment of commercial real estate

loans may be subject to greater extent to adverse conditions in the

real estate market or the economy

Residential Real Estate Loans Mortgage loans include residential

mortgages and home equity loans secured by one to four family

residences located within our primary market area Credit approval for

residential real estate loans requires demonstration of suffident income

to repay the principal and Interest and the real estate taxes and

Insurance stability of empLoyment and an established credit record

Loans in excess of 80% of the appraised value of the property securing

the loan require private mortgage insurance The Company does riot

engage in subprime lending

Consumer Loans We originate consumer loans including auto loans to

consumers in our primary market area Credit approval for other

consumer loans requires income sufficient to repay principal and

interest due stability of employment an established credit record and

sufficient collateral for secured loans Consumer loans typically will

have shorter terms and lower balances with higher yields as compared

to real estate loans but generally carry higher risks ofdefault Consumer

loan collections are dependent on the borrowers continuing financial

stability and thus are more likely to be affected by adverse personal

circumstances

Transfers of Financial Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control

over the assets has been relinquished Control over transferred assets is

deemed to be surrendered when the assets have been isolated from the

Company the transferee obtains the rights free of conditions that

constrain it taking advantage of that right to pledge or exchange the

transferred assets and the Company does not maintain effective control

over the transferred assets and the Company does not maintain

effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to

repurchase them before maturity

Other Real Estate Owned

Other real estate owned Includes property acquired through or in lieu of

formal foreclosure are initially recorded at fair value less costs to sell when

acquired which establishes new cost basis After transfer the property

is carried at the lower of cost or fair value less estimated selling expenses
If fair value declines subsequent to foreclosure valuation allowance is

recorded through expense Operating costs after foreclosure are

expensed

Premises and Equipment

Land is carried at cost Premises and equipment are stated at cost less

accumulated depreciation Depreciation is computed primarily on the

straight-line method with useful lives generally ranging from 15 to 39

years for building and related components and to years for furniture

and equipment

Bank Owned Life Insurance

The Company has purchased life insurance policies on Certain directors

and former executive officer Bank owned life insurance is recorded at

the amount that can be realized under the Insurance contract at the

balance sheet date which Is the cash surrender value adjusted for other

charges or other amounts due that are probable at settlement

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income consists of netincome and other comprehensive

income Other comprehensive income consists of the net unrealized

holding gains or losses of securities available for sale and changes in the

funded status of the pension plan net of the related tax effect

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per common share is net income available to Steuben

Trust Corporation common shareholders divided by the weighted

average number of common shares outstanding during the period

Diluted earnings per common share Includes the dilutive effect of

additional potential common shares issuable under stock options

The factors used In computing earnings per share are as follows in

thousands except share and per share data

1013 2012

Basic

l4et income atlribrAable Lo5ieubonlrustCorporalion 4724 4371

Weighted average coanron shares oulstanding 1642617 1640362

Bask earrdriqs per
common share 2.68 2.66

Diluted

Nd income attributable to Steuben Trust Corporation 4724 4371

lleightcd average common shares oulstunding

for basic earnings percomrnon share 1642617 1640362

Add Dilutive effects otsiock options 1179 206

Average shares and dilutive potential

common shares 1643796 L640S68

Diluted earnings per share 2.61 2.66

Stock options for 9100 shares of common stock were not considered

in computing diluted earnings per share for 2013 because they were

antidilutive There were 8500 stock options at December 31 2012 that

were antidilutive
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POUCIES continued

Incomelaxes

Income tax expense Is the total of the current year income tax due or

refundable and the change In deferred tax assets and liabilities Deferred

tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the estimated future tax

consequences attributable to differences between the financial

statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their

respective tax basis Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured

using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which those temporary

differences are expected to be recovered or settled The effect on

deferred tax assets and liabilities of change in tax rates is recognized

In Income in the period which includes the enactment date valuation

allowance if needed reduces deferred tax assets to the amount

expected to be realized

tax position is recognized as benefit only if it ismore likely than not

that the tax position would be sustained in tax examination with tax

examination being presumed to occur The amount recognized Is the

largest amount of tax benefit that is greater than 50% likely of being

realized on examination For tax positions not meeting theniore
likely

than note test no tax benefit is recorded The Company recognizes

interest and/or penalties related to income tax matters in income tax

expense

Retirement Plans

The Bank sponsors non contributory defined benefit retirement plan

for full-time employees who have attained the age of 21 and have

minimum of oneyear of service New employees hired on or after March

12009 are excluded from participation in the plan.The plan was frozen

and curtailed to new benefit accruals as of December 312012 Pension

expense is the net of service and interest cost return on plan assets and

amortization of gains and losses not immediately recognized Accrued

pension costs are funded to the extent deductible for federal income

tax purposes

The Bank also provides savings and retirement 401k plan for all

eligible employees who elect to participate For the 2010 plan year the

Bank adopted provision which provides safe harbor matching

contribution equal to 100% of the first 3% of compensation deferred

plus 50% of the next 2% of compensation deferred up to maximum of

4% Employer contributions are funded as they are accrued There is

also discretionary contribution that may be paid to eligible employees

This Is subject to approval by the board of directors annually

Stock-Based Compensation

Compensation cost is recognized for stock options issued to employees

based on the fair value of these awards at the date of grant Black

Scholes model is utilized to estimate the fair value of stock options

Compensation cost is recognized over the required service period

generally defined as the vesting period For awards with graded vesting

compensation cost is recognized on straight-line basis over the

requisite service period for the entire award

Loan Commitments and Related Financial Instruments

Financial instruments include off-balance sheet credit instruments

such as commitments to make loans and commercial letters of credit

issued to meet customer-financing needs The face amount for these

items represents the exposure to loss before considering customer

collateral or ability to repay Such financial instruments are recorded

when they are funded

Loans Held for Sale

Mortgage loans originated and intended for sale in the secondary

market are carried at the lower of aggregate cost or fair value as

determined by outstanding commitments from investors Net

unrealized losses if any are recorded as valuation allowance and

charged to earnings Mortgage loans held for sale are generally sold

with servicing rights retained Gains and losses on sales of mortgage

loans are based on the difference between the selling price and the

carrying value of the related loan sold

Long-term Assets

These assets are reviewed for impairment when events Indicate their

carrying amounts may not be recoverable from future undiscounted

cash flows If impaired the assets are recorded at fair value

Loss Contingencies

Loss contingencies including claims and
legal

actions arising In the

ordinary course of business are recorded as liabilities when the

likelihood of loss Is probable and an amount or range of loss can be

reasonably estimated Management does not believe there now are

such matters thatwlll have material effect on the financial statements

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market

information and other assumptions as more fully
disclosed in

separate note Fairvalue estimates involve uncertainties and matters of

significant judgment regarding interest rates credit risk prepayments

and other factors especially in the absence of broad markets for

particular items Changes in assumptions or in market conditions

could significantly affect these estimates

Reclassifications

Some Items in the prior year financial statements were reclassified to

conform to the current presentation Reclassilications had no affect on

prIor year net Income or shareholders equity

Adoption of New Accounting Standards

In February 201 the Financial Accounting Standards Board amended

existing guidance related to reporting amounts reclassified out of

accumulated other comprehensive Income These amendments

do not change the current requirements for reporting net income

or other comprehensive Income in financial statements These

amendments require an entity to provide Information about the

amounts reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive

income by component In addition an entity Is required to present

either on the face of the statement where net income is presented or

in the notes significant amounts reclassified out of accumulated other

comprehensive Income by the respective line items of net income

but onLy if the amount reclassified is required under U.S Generally

Accepted Accounting Principles u.S GAAP to be reclassified to net

Income in its entirety in the same reporting period For other amounts

that are not required under U.S GAAP to be reclassified in their

entirety to net income an entity is required to cross-reference to other

disclosures required under 11.5 GAAP that provide additional detaIls

about those amounts These amendments are effective prospectively

for fiscal years and Interim periods within those years beginning

after December 152013 The effect of adopting this standard did not

have material effect on the Companys operating results or financial

condition
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SECURITIES

The following table summarizes the amortized cost and fair value of the

available-for-sale securities arid held-to-maturity investment securities

portfolio at December 31 2013 and 2012 and the corresponding

amounts ofgrossunrealtzed gains and lossesrecognizedin accumulated

other comprehensive Income loss for securities available for sale in

thousands

iou Cost Gains nsses Value

Able1osal

UuStatesAguucystcunii
41241 l4 651 42050

Stole and munkipalsuritizu 47314 1271 ins 41186

6378 1039 1254 63512

U$CorpDu3teBends
1020 24 1044

Tot8lsEuuitiesaVailable107-sale 1536i 3194 2104 154452

Held-toinoluAty

Staleandniundpalsectnilins
1031 130 1161

Totalsecuritiesheldto-matudty
1031 130 1161

Amortized Unreaized Unreaftzed lair

2012 Curt Gains lostes Value

M103blefor9ie

United StatesAe yseculilies
29938 3305 33243

Stateandmunkipolsecuntiis
46779 2558 50 49201

US AgencyMortgogeVbuckd
seco61i1esiduoti1l 4352 1839 40 51151

USCotrole0nnd 1Q24 38 ll

TotalsecuriUesavallaIe-foriaIe 121093 1140 90 134143

Htld-toinoludty

Stateaodmonkipalsncunties 6267 151 6424

Totalsecurilsheld-to-rnaluiity 6267 151 6424

Securities with unrealized losses at December 31 2013 and 2012 riot

recognized in income are as follows In thousands

1013 1011

lair Unnulired la Unrealized

to Forte lbunhlMonllrr Value Losses Value tosses

Abu-izde

lUitedStaicysecurtres 15939 654

StOandffiLC5lSrclJiIe 10151 455 53l 50

US utudsucut redud 23419 941 7134 40

USforpooletonds

Tonvnfts6lelorVselo 53522 2077 12215 90

bk Unrealized Fair
Unrealized

loeslosllMuntla0cMoae Value Losses Value Losses

/iiflWoriuiz

UnudSU4esyeocu4ie

etezulnrie 4118 354

5911 313

VQoBoid

totalavuilablslorVsale 10719 62

Fair
Unrealized Fair Unrolited

Total
Value tosses Value Losses

AeiabInieVeu

Up St ysucelins 15939 651

Sednuwtyulsecwts 14912 109 5031 50

UJudsecurtksVnrsnliz 35390 1254 1334 40

83.Coepoeate
Bonds

Totlawallable-foriale 61241 2204 12215 90

Unrealized losses on the above securities have not been recognized

into income because the issuers are of high credit quallt management

does not intend to sell and it is unlikely that management will be

required to sell the securities prior to their anticipated recovery and

the decline ire fair value is largely due to fluctuations in interest rates

The fair value is expected to recover as the securities approach their

maturity date and/or market rates adjust favorably

The amortized cost and fair value of debt securities are shown by

contractual maturity as of December 312013 in thousands

Amortized Fair

Cost Value

Available-for-sale

Due In one year or less 3846 3892

Due after one year through five years 28550 29866

Due after five
years through ten years 62280 62701

Due after ten years
58686 57993

Total available-for-sale 153362 154452

Held-to-maturity

Due Ire one year or Ies5 5714 5744

Due afterone year through five
years

9162 9242

Due after five yearn through ten
years

155 175

Due afterten years

Total held-to-maturity 7031 7161

Amortized Unrealized Vnuealized Fair

Salesotaosile-Iorsaiesecudliteo in thousand

2013 1002

Proitds
4153

Gross gains

149

Grostosses

llielaxprosisionroloiedlo
these net realizedgainsand

losseuwos $S8for2012

F-b

Page 53 of 77



Notes To Consolidated Fin ancial Statements

SECURITIES continued

2013 2012

Residential mortgages and home equy loans 61549 9181

Commercial loans 890l0 90875

Commercial real estate loans 56100 45149

Consumer loans 15257 15091

Total 241916 242926

Net unearned loan origination
fees and costs 457 425

Total loans 242373 243351

The recorded investment in loans includes principal outstanding

adjusted for net unearned loan origination fees and cost net loan

premiums and discounts and loss on any loan charge-offs The recorded

investment in loans does not include accrued interest receivable as the

effect is not considered to be material Commercial real estate loans

are defined as loans secured by real estate for which rental income on

the collateral property is the primary source of repayment of the loan

The Companys market area is generally Steuben Allegany LIvingston

Monroe and Wyoming counties In New York State Most of its loans

are made in its market area and accordingly the ultimate

collectibility of the Companys loan portfolio is susceptible to changes

in market conditions In this area

The Companys concentration of credit risk is shown in the above

schedule of loans outstanding The concentration of off-balance

sheet credit risk in commercial letters of credit and mortgage

commercial and auto loans commitments is similar to the loans

outstanding above Management is not aware of any material

concentrations of credit risk to any industry or individual borrower

The following is summary of changes in the allowance for loan losses by

portfolio segment as of December 31 2013 and 2012 in thousands

Conrratdol 8edor6i

Roil Roal

Comatithl Estate2613 oasunsar Uoailocatai Total

Albtnlootts

6toir9krce
1274 852 153 123 373 2815

Poolalsbsiai 1161 367 46
1611

11811 154

1oanderoo1s 11 1116 II Ill 11591

Rcmeiss 19 63 93

Totaltnintoeanabare 1143 1111 187 128 191 1860

Coornardal Redaotial

Roal Rtal

2012 Coormardal Estate Conewner Unallocated Total

varanlots

Rogiabtlonce
1154 503 53 210 450 1815

Pro nfotloerbsset 11211 264 81
1771

150

toaothsrgaoTs 1911 11291
12211

34 81 11$

Totalendalooinsebaiaero 7274 852 153 223 313 2815

The followIng table presents the balance in the allowance for loan

losses and the recorded investment in loans by portfolio segment and

based on Impairment method as of December 31 2013 and 2012 in

thousands
Commelual gortdeoCal

Real Real

totals Erb1 Conounr Uoailocaltd Total
1013 Conuneec81

A5noncetslsrnbrrsr

luablotobara

lore1otlirner0 114 214

ottortrd06rpoinornt 1243 037 Ill ia Ins osoo

Tsllesd6sg1lswancebalaoce 1243 1111 131 20 191 2060

Losn

6ldIirrsr4 167 L144 1315

Ccoc1644jawiedtinoinncn1 18320 58952 61343 55335 24t050

Total diogloasbalance 81995 56800 01943 13335 242173

Cononercial Retidrolia

Osal Real

3052 Ccarmrrdal slate totatr ooounai Suffocated total

-uroolvitasntatooo

rrwsreb3tsraflI16aabiatolot.s

yifpuconct 403 443

Cl6ei/o7t 481 çsincssl 5.274 484 503 223 177 0471

Totalendio0alaxebalasca 1374 852 ISO 213 322 2075

Loac

bdr6ytadforiO440 213 5207 5412

CeaOjnl.1dfot6cTssl 506-16 43815 92003 5106 24L079

Totalnngloanbalano4 04834 43149 92.530 13160 243331

The following table presents loans evaluated for impairment by class of

loans as of December31 2013 and 2012Cm thousands

1013

1107647.51 46w54eotlO48

ocd 161 57 St

onotiet5Eo

65i1bs

ritho

to8s

o1aiicmoonos-f

oro3

csltUlto4ttat22

ccsu1

3o 1164 5501 214 1210

tor8zot

total 0381 1318 274 1210

topail Jwagxotsi 0arae tnta001 Caoi4

Prt4a
8a51ot two Losso Recoded Inono 0Weil

2852 Balance Inrasbocint Mocated Bamborol Recognised Recognised

ltorrotatoti0sscro40rds

cootid 50ff

Cc1dto8totiZ

twtsllis

tee

00d

xei48o
nicncrd

cWtotota13

taolnot6n

8Son 1264 5264 448 5260

tedid

Total 1422 3413 440 5264

AtDecember 312013 and 2012 secunltleswith fairvalue of $1 51036000

and $123786000 respectively were pledged to secure governmental

deposits Federal Home Loan Bank advances and for other purposes as

required or permitted by law

LOANS

The following is summary of loans outstanding at year-end in

thousands

Orpaid

loindpal Re51od

Russo tcao1noot

015390 61105335

scooted Iicir

leastowot tecriwi

CasIo Bear

teoml

Fil
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LOANS continued

Nonaccural loans and loans past due 90 days and over and still accruing

include both smaller balance homogenous loans that are collectively

evaluated for impairment and lnciivlduaUy classified impaired loans

The following table presents the recorded investment in nonaccrual

and loans past due 90 days and over and still on accrual by class of loans

as of December 312013 and 2012 irs thousands

2013 2012

loans Past Due Loans Past Due

900aysandOverand 90Daysarid0rerand

5tlAwuing
Nonaccrual Total Still Acuting Nueacaual Total

Cenmerdal 22 22 141 ISO

CommcitRIlat

Constaucfoo

Odin 1148 1148 l64 1264

Constusier

0ukied

An-indiiecl 12

Odin 24 24

ResidentI 191 311 70 549 519

Total $191 1320 1811 $81 l946 2033

The following table presents the aging of the recorded investment in

pastdue loans as of December31 2013 and 2012 by class of loans in

thousands

30-59 60-89 Greaterthan

Total

88995

2013

Commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Construction 3216 3276

Oiler 80 1148 1228 51596 52824

Consumer

Other 82 18 109 7566 7675

Autc-direct 32 32 4719 4151

Auto-indirect 38 39 2870 2909

Reden0al 167 198 25 1230 80713 81943

Total 1555 363 1422 3340 239033 242313

30-59 60-89 Greater than

Days Days
80 days Total Loans Not

2012 PastDue PastDae PastDue PastDue PastDne Total

Commercial 399 88 133 620 90234 90854

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 183 1264 1447 43102 45149

Consumer

Other 16 25 7165 1190

Auto-direct 10 18 4240 4258

Auto-indirect 133 15 15 163 3549 3712

flesidenOal 758 130 288 1176 91012 92188

Total 1488 244 1717 3449 239902 243351

Troubled Debt Restructurings

The Company has not identified any troubled debt restructurings as of

December31 2013 and 2012

Special Mention Loans classified as special mention have potential

weakness that deserves managements close attention If left

uncorrected these potential
weaknesses may result In deterioration of

the repayment prospects for the loan or of tire institutions credit

position at some future date

Substandard Loans classified as substandard are inadequately

protected by the current net worth and paying capacity of the

obligor or of the collateral pledged if any Loans so classified

have well-defined weakness orweaknesses thatJeopardize the

liquidation
of the debt.They are characterized by the distinct

possibility
that the institution will sustain some loss if the

deficiencies are not corrected

Doubtful Loans classified as doubtful have all the weaknesses

Inherent in those classified as substandard with the added

characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or liquidation

in full on the basis of
currently existing facts conditions and

values highly questionable and improbable

Loans not meeting the criteria above that are analyzed individually as

part of the above described process are considered to be pass rated

loans Loans listed as not rated are either less than $100000 or are

included in groups of homogeneous loans Loans categorized asnot

rated are evaluated based on delinquency which is previously

presented As of December 312013 and 2012 and based on the most

recent analysis performed the risk category of loans by class of loans is

as follows irs thousands

Doubtful Total

88995

2013 Rated Pass

Commercial 84953

Commercial Real Estate

Construction 3276 3216

Other 51.379 297 1148 52824

Consumer 15335 15335

Redential 81943 81943

Total 97218 139608 2804 2683 242373

Not Special
Sub

2012 Rated Pass Mention standard Doubtful Total

Commercial 83150 6706 998 90854

Commercial Real Estate

Construction

Other 41951 1848 1350 45149

Consumer 15160 15160

Residential 92188 92188

Total 107348 125101 8554 2348 243351

Credit Quality Indicators

The Company categorize5 loans into risk categories based on relevant

information about ti-se ability of borrowers to service theIr debt such

as current financial Information historical payment experience credit

documentation public information and current economic trends

among other factors The Company analyzes loans individually

classifying the loans as to credit risk This analysis includes loans wit

an outstanding balance greater than $100000 and non-homogeneous

loans such as commercial and commerdal real estate loans This

analysis is performed on quarterly basis The Company uses the

following definitions for risk ratings

Days Days

PastDue PastDue

556 146

89 days Total Loans Not

Past Due Past Due Past Due

702 88293

Not Special

Mention

2507

Sub

standard

1535

F-i
Page 55 of 77



Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

FAIR VALUE

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset

or paid to transfer liability exit price in the principal or most

advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction

between market participants on the measurement date There are

three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair values

Level Quoted prices unadjusted for identical assets or liabilities in

active markets that the entity has the ability to access as of the

measurement date

Level Significant other observable inputs other than Level prices

such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities quoted prices In

markets that are not active or other Inputs that are observable or can

be corroborated by observable market data

Level Significant unobservable inputs that reflect reporting entitys

own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants

would use in pricing an asset or liability

The Company used the following methods and significant assumptions

to estimate fair value

Investment Securities

The fair values for investment securities are determined by quoted

market prices if available Level For securities where quoted prices

are not available fair values are calculated based on market prices of

similar securities Level

Impaired Loans

The fair value of impaired loans with specific allocations of the

allowance for loan losses is generaliy based on recent reai estate

appraisal.Tbese appraisals may utilize single valuation approach or

combination of approaches including comparable sales and the income

approach Adjustments are routinely made in the appraisal process by

the appraisers to adjust for differences between the comparable sales

and income data available Such adjustments are typically significant

and result in Level classification of the inputs for determining fair

value Non-real estate collateral may be valued using an appraisal net

book value per the borrowers financial statements or aging reports

adjusted or discounted based on managements historical knowledge

changes in market conditions from the time of the valuation and

managements expertise and knowledge of the client arid clients

business resulting in Level fair value classification Impaired loans are

evaiuated on quarterly basis for additional impairment and adjusted

accordingly

Other Real Estate Owned

Assets acquired through or Instead of loan foreclosure are initially

recorded at fair value less costs to sell when acquired establishing

new cost basisThese assets are subsequently accounted for at lower of

cost or fair value less estimated costs to sell Fair value is commonly

based on recent real estate appraisals These appraisals may utilize

single valuation approach or combination of approaches including

comparable sales and the income approach Adjustments are routinely

made in the appraisal process by the independent appraisers to adjust

for differences between the comparable sales and income data

available Such adjustments are usually significant and
typically

result

in Level classification of the inputs for determining fair value Real

estate owned properties are evaluated on quarterly basis for

additional impairment and adjusted accordingly

Appraisals for collateral-dependent impaired loans and real estate

owned are performed by certified general appraisers whose

qualifications and licenses have been reviewed and verified by the

Company Once received it is reviewed by one of the Companys

appraisal reviewers The assumptions and approaches utilized in the

appraisal as well as the overall resulting fair value in comparison wIth

independent data sources such as recent market data or industry-wide

statistics are reviewed On an annual basIs the Company compares the

actual selling price of collateral that has been sold to the most recent

appraised value to determine what additional adjustment should be

made to the appraisal value to arrive at fair value

Assets measured at fair value on recurring basis are summarized

below in thousands

FValiiawiintnIsat

Dember3l2Ol3tng

Quoted Price

inkliye Signhlicail

Marheir for Othar SignlaM

ldontcal Gbsorvrble Unobnrrnle

wying trrt liuis Inputs

FiadalAssuts lust lrstll l.tstL lLtYUl

Serdianabu1orsalu

UrtodStsIerAsnCystcurtss 42O 41i5O

Ststnntsalscatie 4116 41756

U3ArngbadudsucufleiioflUul 63Sli 63$1l

UCorpeais8onds lI4 l44

Totalinvest its aritiesarailrblu-lonaIa 15443 15443

Fair Valuwernarrlsat

Deenba3l2Oi2Urrg

QuotedPdces

mActue Signitcant

Mekets In Other Signulkiul

ldtncal Observable Unobservable

Carrying
Assets Inputs kputs

FinandalAsrets latuis arvuJJ LttteLl lttsui

Stksarv7ubiu-lor-ssir

USleAgvnrysecaitts
33243 33243

Ststdmunsvositks 49217 49281

Ussgrnrymovge.bacindsvcstresiiinntirl 54151 5L15i

.CorpornaMrdr
1l lG52

Total mean sent seeoiities avaiiable1oreala 134143 134743

There were no transfers between Level and Level during 2013 or 2012

Fi
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QnotedPlie$ Vlu6on

1embj31 2018 EinViluu Tethniquea

Mi0etsfo iikant hrad1uunr

Identkal linobserv3ble cwniirdestue 811 r1p7roch

Carrying Aceutu Irub

Wise lmelll

CoirirccaI 91 5uoioaapçincch Etinutolyci.u0omreul

470 ra2fpnorth a1na6onale

105 smcoaaçpcath EceIiornacl

SI95O51 Oeanbnr3l2012 FairValue Tahiques

Unobsuruble

Inputs 816 noaIc
lLeeel3

PsIerteteerth

816
cenrnnthl 415 kspsuth

ecent0ctrnd1u

stpcnpcy

Si corn9enseppcnoth
ilf9faeena

bet nIh
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FAIR VALUE continued

Assets measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis are summarized below The following table presents quantitative information about level fair

in thousands
value measurements for assets measured at fair value on non-recurring

Fib rlt
basis at December 31 2013 and 2012 amounts in thousands
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FAIR VALUE continued

The following represent impairment charges recognized during the

period

Impaired loans which are measured for impairment using the faIr

value of the collateral for collateral dependent loans had carrying

amount of $1148000 wIth valuation allowance of $274000 at

December 31 2013 resultIng In no additional provision for loan losses

at December 31 2013 and $116000 charge-off during 2013 that was

fully reserved in prior period At December 31 2012 unpaired loans

had carrying amount of $1264000 with valuation allowance of

$448000 resulting in an additional provision for loan losses of $65000
for the year ending December 31 2012

Other real estate owned which is measured at the lower of carrying or

fair value less costs to sell had net carrying amount of $666000

which is made up of the outstanding balance of $946000 net of

valuation allowance of $280000 at December 31 2013 resulting In

write-down of $134000 for the year ending December 31 2013 At

December 312012 other real estate owned had net carrying amount

of $533000 which is made up of the outstanding balance of $595000

net of valuation allowance of $62000 resulting in write-down of

$61000 for the year ending December 312012

The carrying amount and estimated fair values of financial Instruments

at December 31 2013 and 2012 were as follows in thousands

FfrtalueMvaeenEnt3at

Dcvrnbe 311013 thing

Lnvdl I.evdl Lnvnl3 minI
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Srll44sn 239111 144201 240lO

kcwdLr44wivmstin .448 560 413 1146
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dnudws 12260451 226043

dpoiis 11149041 1115134 1129.534

rehonFHtB 116165 1391301 i33ii
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Arundisinretpnjstin 551
65 1951
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ranpxiu 197.501 193659 97659

AdrnluniF168 141702 41761 41191

Sunstnc bni ins 12059 11.6291 1.6291

kcnivdiflle60psn 1971
1971 91

The estimated fair value approximates carrying amount for all items

except those described below Estimated fair value for securities is

based on quoted market values for the individual securities or for

equivalent securities

Loans The fair value is estimated using an internally generated cash

flow consisting of beginning known or estimated maturities known

or estimated principal payments and assumed prepayments Each

months cash flow is then dIscounted to the current market or discount

rate The discount rate for fair value purposes is the current offering

rate for the same loan category The sum of the values for each period is

aggregated to produce value for the position as whole

Time Deposits The fair value is estimated using internally generated

cash flows consisting of beginning known or estimated maturities

known or estimated principal payments and usually small assumed

early withdrawal Each months cash flow is then discounted to that

months current market or discount rate modified by constant spread
The current market rate varies by month and is based on the LIBOR/swap

curve The sum of the values for each period is aggregated to produce

value for the position as whole

Borrowings The fair values of the Companys Federal Home Loan Bank

advances are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on the

current borrowings for similar types of borrowing arrangements resulting

in Level classIfication The fair values of the Companys subordinated

debentures are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses based on

the current borrowing rates for similar types of borrowing arrangements

10913 resulting in Level classification

Accrued Interest Receivable/Payable The carrying amount of

accrued interest approximate fair value
resulting

in Level or Level

classification is consistent with the classification of the asset or liability

they are associated with

Off-balance Sheet Instruments Fair values for off-balance sheet credit-

related financial instruments are based on fees currently charged to enter

into similar agreements taking into account the remaining term of the

agreements and the counterpartles credit standing The fair value of

commitments is not material

OThER REAL ESTATE OWNED

Other real estate owned at December 312013 and 2012 was as follows

In thousands

2013 2012

Other real estate owned 946 14.40

Valuation allowance 280 237

Net other real estate owned $666 1203

Activity In the valuation allowance was as follows in thousands

2013 2012

Beginning of Year 237 176

Additions charged to expense 134 61

Direct write-downs 91

EndofYear $280 237

Expenses related to foreclosed assets include in thousands

2013 2012

Net loss/gain on sales 10

Provision for unrealized losses 134 61

Operating expenses net of rental income 70 29

Endof Year $214 32

n6ng

Amoeni

13913

Fair Vu 6inasurnsne6sl

Catrjing

Asnjnl Innsll instIl LnvtI3 Total
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PREMISES AND EQUIPMENT

Premises and equipment at December 312013 and 2012 consist of the

following in thousands

2013 2012

Land 2151 2151

Bank premises 7753 7747

Furnltureandequiprnent 6604 6503

Cost basis 16508 16401

Accumulated depreciation 9327 8904

Net 7181 7497

Depreciation expense was $423000 and $384000 for 2013 and 2012

respectively

Operating Leases

The Company leases certain branch properties and equipment under

operation leases Rent expense was $228000 for 2013 and $240000 for

2012 Rent commitments before considering renewal options that

generally are present were as follows in thousands

Year Amount

2014 212

2015 197

2016 150

2017 121

2018 97

Thereafter 183

Total 960

GOODWiLL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Company acquired Canisteo Savings and Loan Association

Canisteo on February 20 2009 As result of this acquisition goodwill

of $64000 was recorded by the Company An annual impairment
analysis of goodwill is performed with any Identified impairment

charged to expense No impairment was identified in either 2013 or

20121 Also as result of this acquisition core deposit intangible

amount of $65000 was Initially recorded by the Company The

Company recorded $7000 in annual amortization expense associated

with this item durln9 2013 and 2012 The remaining net amount of

$31000 is included in intangible assets on the Statement of FinancIal

Condition.The remaining core deposit intangible will be amortized over

more years

INCOME TAXES

The components of income tax expense/beneflt on operations are as

follows in thousands

Current Deferred Total

Year ended December31 2013

Federal 1399 96 1.495

State 323 22 345

Total 1722 118 1840

Current Deferred Total

Year ended December31 2012

Federal 1425 85 1340

State 305 19 286

Total 1730 104 1626

The actual and statutory tax rates on operations for the years ended

December 31 2013 and 2012 differ as follows

2013 2012

Statutory rate 34.0 00 34.0

Increase decrease resulting from

Tax-exempt income 97 10.2

State taxes net of federal income tax benefit 3.5 3.1

Other 0.2 0.2

Actual rate 28.0 27.1

The tax effects of temporary differences that give rise to slqnlfscant

portions of the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities at

becember 31 2013 and 2012 are presented below in thousands

2013 2012

Deferred lax assets

Allowance forloan losses 980 956

Deferred Compenseliors 1007 930

Pension Plan 505 1345

Other 264 263

Total gross defereed tax assets 2756 3494

Deferred tax liabilities

Depredatton 144 109

Net unrealized gain on securities available for sale 422 2959

Prepaid pension expenses
800 681

Other 241 184

Total
gross deferred lax liabilities 1616 3933

Netdelerredtaxasoetlliabllity 1140 1439

Reallzation of deferred tax assets is dependent upon
the generation

of future taxable Income or the existence of suffictent taxable income
within the carryback period valuation allowance is provided when
it is more likely than not that some portion of the deferred tax assets

will not be realized in assessing the need for valuation allowance

manaement considers the scheduled reversal of the deferred tax

liabilities the level of historical taxable income and projected future

taxable income over the periods In which the temporary differences

comprIsing the deferred tax assets will be deductible Based on its

assessment management determined that no valuation allowance is

necessary

At December31 2013 and 2012 the Company had no unrecognized
tax benefits Tue Company does not expect the amount of

unrecognized tax benefits to increase signIficantly within the next

twelve months There were no penalties or interest related to income

taxes recorded in the income statement for the years ended

December 312013 and 2012 and no amounts accrued for penalties

as of December31 2013 and 2012

The Company is subject to U.S federal income tax as well as income

tax of the state of New York The Company is no longer subject to

examination by taxing authorities for years before 2010

10 DEPOSITS

Contractual maturities of time deposits at December 31 2013 and

2012 were as follows in thousands
2013 2012

Under three months 52873 19132

Three to twelve months 40132 54295

Over one year to three years 29581 22895

Overthreeyears 2318 1179

Totaltlmedeposits 124904 97501

Time deposits of $100000 and over were $64712000 and $37821000
at December 31 2013 and 2012 respectIvely Included in time

deposits were $37044000 in brokered deposits at December 312013

compared to $29842000 at December 31 2012

11 BENEFITPLANS

Pen5ion Plan

The Company has funded noncontributory defined benefit pension

plan that covers the majority of its employees The plan provides

defined benefits based on years of service and final average salary.The

Company uses December31 as the measurement date for Its pension

plan New employees hired on or after March 2009 are excluded

from participation in the plan The plan was frozen and curtailed to

new benefit accruals as of December31 2012 This action decreased

the projected benefit obligation of the plan by $1373000

F-i
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11 BENEFIT PLANS continued

The following table sets forth the defined benefit pension plans change

in benefit obligation and change irs plan assets for the years ended

December 312013 and 2012 in thousands

1013 2012

Change
in proje benefit obligation

Benefit obligation at begloning of year
11097 10461

Serofce cost 89 558

lolerestcosl 447 517

Actuarial gaindoss 10511 1381

Benefilspaidandplanexpenses 505 1453

Curtairnents 1313

Benefit obOgation at tedof
year

10061 11097

Change
in

plan
assets

Faisvalueof planassetsatbegivningof year
9380 8037

itctual return on plan assets 1485 890

Benefits
paid

and
plan enpenses

512 439

Cor4ributions 502 892

Fair valueof planassetnat endof
year 10853 9380

Funded status at end of year plan assets less benefit obUgation
786 17171

Amount recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income/

loss at December 31 2013 and 2012 consists of In thousands

2013 2012

Unrecognized net actuarial loss net of tax 800 2132

The amount of net actuarial loss that will be amortized in 2014 is

$21000 The accumulated benefit obligation for the years ended

December 31 2013 and 2012 was $10067000 and $11097000

respectively Pension costs consist of the following components for the

years ended December 31 2013 and 2012 in thousands

2013 2012

Senicecust 89 558

Interest on projected benefit obligotion
447 517

Expected return on plan assets 1592 Sill

Aznorrimtionofnelixss 225 214

Cortaiment loss

lletperiodicpensixn expense
169 171

2013 2012

Netlossgoinl 1947 1058

Curtailment 1376

Amortization oloetguinllloss 225 274

Total recognized in other

comprehensive
Income 12.1721 15921

Total recognized in net periodk pension

costlincomel and other cumprthendneinsome 12003 179

YIeightedaverae of assurnplions used to determine net periodic cost are as follsws

2013

Discount rate

Expected long-term rate of return

Rate of Compensation Increase

Velghtedavoeo of assumptions
used to determine pension benefit

obligations atycarend are as follows

Discount rate

Rate of
Compensation Increase

The Systems overall investment strategy is to achieve mix of

approximately 97% of investments for long-term growth and 3% for

near-term benefit payments with wide diversification of asset types
fund strategies and fund managers The target allocatIons for System

assets are shown in the table below Cash equivalents consist primarily

of government issues maturing in less than three months and short

term investment funds Equity securities primarily include investments

in common stock depository receipts preferred stock and real estate

investment trusts Fixed Income securities include corporate bonds

government issues mortgage backed securities municipals and other

asset backed securities

The weighted average expected lon9-term rate of return is estimated

based oncurrenttrends in the System sassetsaswell as projected future

rates of return on those assets and reasonable actuarial assumptions
based on the guidance provided by ASOP No 27 Selection of

Economic Assumptions for Measuring Pension Obligations for long

term inflation and the real and nominal rate of investment return for

specific mix of asset classes The following assumptions were used in

determining the long-term rate of return

Equity securities- Dividend discount model the smoothed earnings

yield model and the equity risk premium model

Fixed income securities- Current yield-to-maturity and forecasts of

future yields

Other financial instruments- Comparison of the specific investments

risk to that offixed incomeand equityinstruments and using judgment

The long term rate of return considers historical returns Adjustments
were made to historical returns in order to reflect expectations of

future returns These adjustments were due to factor forecasts by
economists and longterm U.S Treasury yields to forecast long-term

inflation In addition forecasts by economists and others for longterm
GDP growth were factored into the development of assumptions for

earnings growth and per capita income

Effective February 2012 the System revised its investment guidelines

The System currently prohibits its investment managers from

purchasing any security greater than 5% of the portfolio at the time

of purchase or greater than 8% at market value in any one issuer

Effective June 25 2013 the issuer of any security purchased must be

located in country In the MSCI Morgan Stanley Capital International

World Index In addition the following are prohibited

Equity securities- Short sales unregistered securities and margin

purchases

Fixed Income- Mortgage backed derivatives that have an inverse

floating rate coupon or that are Interest only securities Any asset

backed security that is not issued by the U.S Government or Its

agencies or its instrumentalities Generally securities of less than Baa2/

BBB quality may not be purchased Securities of less than
A-quality

may not in the aggregate exceed 13% of the Investment managers
portfolio Prior to February 2012 these investments could not exceed

10% of the managers portfolio Effective February 2012 an investment

managers portfolio of commercial mortgage-backed securities and

asset backed securities shall not exceed 10% of the portfolio at the

time of purchase

Other financial Instruments- Unhedged currency exposure in

countries not defined as high income economies by the World Bank

All other Investments not prohibited by the System are permitted At

December 31 2013 and 2012 the System held certain investments

which are no longer deemed acceptable to acquire These positions

will be liquidated when the investment manaciers deem that such

liquidation is in the best interest of the System The target allocation

range below is both historic and prospective in that it has not changed
since prior to 2012 It is the asset allocation range that the investment

managers have been advised to adhere to and within which they may
make tactical asset allocation decisions

Weighted-

Average

Percuntage of Plan Onsets at Expected

413%

630%

aOO%

2012

5.07%

720%

3.03%

Target December31

AsselCategosy Aliocalionl0l4 2013 2012

2013 2012
Cash equivalents

0-20% 53% 110%

5.10% 4.13% Equity secudtes 4060% 50.6% 453%

020% 00% Debt securities 4060% 439% 41.7%

Otherlmandalinstnimenls 0-5%

Long-Term

Rateof Return

0.17%

4.26%

106%
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11 BENEFIT PLANS continued

Fair Value of Plan Assets

Fair value is the exchange price that would be received for an asset

or paid to transfer liability exit price in the principal or most

advantageous market for the asset or liabILity in an orderly transaction

between market participants on the measurement date There are

three levels of inputs that may be used to measure fair values

Level Quoted prices unadjusted
for Identical assets or liabilities in

active markets that the entity has the ability to access as of the

measurement date

Level SignIficant other observable inputs other than Level prices

such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities quoted prices in

markets that are not active or other inputs that are observable or can

be corroborated by observable market data

Level Significant unobservable inputs that reflect reporting entitys

own assumptions about the assumptions that market participants

would use in pricing an asset or liability

In instances in which the inputs used to measure fair value fall into

different levels of the fair value hierarchy the fair value measurement

has been determined based on the lowest level input that is significant

to the fair value measurement in its entirety investments valued using

the NAV Net Asset Value are classified as level if the System can

redeem its investment with the investee at the NAV at the measurement

date If the System can never redeem the investment with the investee

at the NAV it is considered level if the System can redeem the

investment at the NAV at future date the Systems assessment of the

significance of particular item to the fair value measurement in its

entirety requires judgment including the consideration of inputs

specific to the asset

The System uses the Thomson Reuters Pricing Service to determine the

faIr value of equities and the pricing service of IDC Corporate USA to

determine the fair value of fixed income securities In accordance with

ASC 820 the following tables rounded to the nearest thousands

represent the Plans fair value hierarchy for its financiaL assets

investments measured atfair value on recurring basis

F-18

The following table represents the Plans assets at fair value by class as

of December 312013 and 2012 In thousands

2913

tenell Level2 Level3 Total

Cash Equivalents

Foreigacusrendex IS 15

Government Issues 157 157

Short term investment funds 420 420

TotalCashEquivatents 15 577 592

Equities

Common Stock 5388 5390

DepositoryReceipts 52 16 68

Preferred Stock 25 25

Real lnvestmentTsust 16 16

Total Equities 5481 16 5497

Fixed lucerne Securities

Auto loan receivable 39 39

Collateralized
mortgageobligations

1190 1190

Corporate
Bonds 1219 1219

Federal Home toan Mortgage Corp 148 148

Fedeval National McrtgageAssoc
511 511

General NaUonat Mortgage Assoc 36 36

General National
Mortgage

Assoc II 16 16

Government Issues 1509 1509

Municipals 36 35

TotalfixedlnuomeSecudties 4764 4764

Total Investments 5496 5357 10853

Fair valueatitAv

2012

Levell Levet2 LeveI3 Total

Cash Equivalents

Foedgncurseacies
10 to

Government Issues 51 51

Shoetlerminvestmentfundsa 1150 1150

Total Cash Equivalents 10 1201 1211

Eqef ties

Common Stock 4131 4131

Depository Receipts 92 92

PreferredStock 18 18

Real Estate Investment Trust 18 18

Total Equities 4259 4259

Fixed Income Securities

Autoloanseceivable 51 51

Coltaleralizedrnortgageobligatlons 1017 1017

Corporate Bonds 886 086

FederalHomeLoanMortgageCorp 116 116

Federal National Mortgage Assoc 465 465

General National Mortgage Assoc

General National Mortgage Assoc II 22 22

Government Issues 1336 1336

Munkipats
10 10

OtherAssetBocked

Total Fixed Income Secunties 3910 3910

Totaltnvestmnents 4269 5111 9380

lafairvalueatWAV

Page 61 of77



Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

II BENEFIT PLANS continued

At December 31 2013 the portfolio was manaped by two investment

firms Control was split approximately 58% and 41% with the

remaining 1% under direct control of the Sy5tem At December 31
2012 the portfolio was managed by two investment firms Control was

split approximately 49% and 43% with the remaining 8% under the

direct control of the System

At December 31 2013 there was 5% of portfolio concentration

in the State Street Bank Trust Co Short Term Investment Fund At

December31 2012 there was 12% of portfolio concentration Ira the

State Street Bank Trust Co Short Term Investment Fund

Pension Plan Investment Policies

The System was established In 1938 to provide for the payment of

benefits to employees of participating banks The System is overseen

by Board of Trustees who meet quarterly and set the investment

policy guidelines The Chief Executive Officer of the Company is the

current chair of the Board of Trustees for the System and member of

Its investment Committee

The System utilizes two investment management firms each Investing

approximately 50% of the total portfolio The Systems investment

objective is to exceed the investment benchmarks in each asset

category Each firm operates under separate written investment

policy approved by the Trustees

Each Firm reports at least quarterly to the Investment Committee and

semi-annually to the Board

Contributions

The Company is not required to make contribution in 2014

Estimated Future Benefit Payments of Pension Plan

The following benefit payments which reflect expected future service

as appropriate are expected to be paid in thousands

Pension

Year Benefits

435

459

490

550

602

201 9-2023 3279

Deferred Compensation Plan

The Company has Deferred Compensation Plan DCP which permits

active directors and certain executive officers the option to defer receipt

of portion of their future salary bonus or directorsfees The amounts

deferred will earn income at the Prime interest rate reported In the Wall

Streetiournal and are payable upon retirement Deferred compensation

liability at December 312013 and 2012 was $2603000 and $2404000

respectively Deferred compensation expense related to this plan was

$198000 in 2013 and $247000 In 2012

In conjunction with the DCR the Company entered into split-dollar

agreements on certain participants whereby upon death the

participants beneficiary will receive the deferred account balance or

death benefit whichever is greater These split dollar agreements were

financed through the purchase of life insurance policies The cash

surrender value of these policies was $8791000 and $8534000 at

December 312013 and 2012 respectively

401k Plan

The Company sponsors defined contribution
profit sharing 401k

plan covering substantially all employees The Company matched

certain levels of each employees contributions to the plan resulting in

an expense of $456000 and $217000 in 2013 and 2012 respectively

committee of the Board of Directors will administer the Plan Their

responsibility will Include designating participants determining the type

and number of awards granted and establishing the terms and conditions

of the awards

The fair value of each option award Is estimated on the date of grant

using closed form option valuation Black-Scholes model that uses

the assumptions noted in the table below Expected volatilities are

based on historical volatilities of the Companys common stock The

Company uses historical data to estimate option exercise and post-

vesting termination behavior The expected term of options granted is

based on historical data and represents the period of time that options

granted are expected to be outstanding which takes into account

that the options are not transferable The risk-free interest rate for the

expected term of the option is based on the U.S.Treasury yield curve in

effect at the time of the grant

The fair value of options granted was determined using the following

weighted-average assumptions as of the grant date

2li 1t11

OS

Shires

tralbrrrofyer i53C 2536 4lears

antsd 9lt 3O 43Yvca

Ex-ided li4l 2SS

fcdsitdoraped

Oucndngattrdolyccr
23P 2Ji 333vcr3 4-3

Fi.ivastndexscicd1avvct 2310 213 49

cdsabatenddyecr 633 21.14 iS fasts 23

2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan

The Company has share based compensation plan as described below

Total compensation cost that has been charged against income for those

plans was $13000 for 2013 and $11000 for 2012 The total income tax

benefit was $5000 for 2013 and $4000 for 2012

The Companys 2010 Long-Term Stock Incentive Plan Plan which

is shareholder approved permits the grant of share options and share

grants to Its employees for up to 80000 shares of common stock Option

awards are granted with an exercise price at least equal to the market

price of the Companys common stock at the date of grant those option

awards may have vesting periods ranging up to ten years

FJk-lrseinlvaesi rctv

Expod isnvests

stxkpicsvoisi3t

DiidYaid

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

t53O iS.46

333 33i

WeiilsdAvaogs

verde

Pike

lkigldAerage

Rernei

Contractvallere

Aggregate

lntiinric

Valve

tile

Csshrcdfrernopectckvd

rerd oeoptvnsexathed

Weigh2dacn5elakvalLevfoplivnagianlvd

1AII 2A12

38 31

133 III

As of December 31 2013 there was $12000 of total unrecognized

compensation cost related to nonvested stock options granted under

the Plan The cost Is expected to be recognized over weighted

average period of years
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14 SHAREHOLDERS EQUITY
12 RELATEOPARTYTRANSACTIONS

Executive officers and directors and their associates were customers of

and had other transactions with the Company in the ordinary course of

business summary of the changes in outstanding loans to executive

officers and directors or indirectly made for their benefit for the years

ended December 31 2013 arid 2012 is as follows in thousands

2013 2012

Balance of loans outstanding at beginning oIyear 359 337

New loans and Increases in existing loans 20 209

Loan principal payments 83 087

Balance at end of year $296 359

Deposits for executive officers directors and their affiliates were

$3041000 arid $2519000 at December31 2013 and 2012 respectively

Legal lees incurred in the ordinary course of business that were paid to

Shuits Shults were $65000 and $55000 in 2013 and 2012 respectively

Shults Shuits isa partnership owned by David Shults and Eric Shults

both of whom are directors and shareholders of the Company

13 REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements

administered by the federal banking agencies Failureto meet minimum

capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and possibly

additional discretionary actions by regulators that If undertaken

could have direct material effect on the Companys financial

statements Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory

framework for prompt corrective action the Bank must meet specific

capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Banks

assets liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated

under regulatory accounting practices.The Banks capital amounts and

classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators

about components risk weightings and other factors

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital

adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios

set forth in the table below of total and tier capital as defined in the

regulations to risk-weighted assets as defined and her capital as

defined to average assets as defined Management believes as of

December 31 2013 that the Bank meets all capital adequacy

requirements to which it is subject

The most recent notification from the Federal Deposit Insurance

Corporation and the New York State Department of Financial Services

categorized the Bank as well capitalized under the regulatory

framework for prompt corrective action To be categorized as well

capitalized the Bank must maintain minimum total risk-based Tier

risk-based and Tier leverage ratios as set forth in the table There are

no conditions or events since that notification that management

believes have changed the Banks category

The Banks regulatory capital amounts and ratios are presented irs

following table in thousands

47463 11111545 985 81054 24359 1005

39l3 15.91 9144 tO 14915 6117

3233 9.77 6224 410 23260 50

The Companys ratios are comparable to the Banks stated above The

Companys actual Tier capital ratio to Average Assets at December 31 2013

was 10.23% compared to 9.88% for December 212012

The Company is dependent on receipt of dividends from the Bank in

order to pay dividends to its shareholders Payment of dividends by the

Bank is limited or restricted in certain circumstances According to state

banking law approval of the New York State Department of Financial

Services is required for the declaration of dividends by bank in any

year in which the dividends declared will exceed its net profits for that

year combined with its retained net profits of the preceding two years

Dividends in the amount of $5361000 are available from the Bank at

December 31 2013 without the approval of the New York State

Department of Financial Services

15 SUBORDINATED DEBENTURES

On July 16 2007 Steuben Statutory Trust trust formed by the

Company completed pooled private offering of $2000000 of trust

preferred securities The Company Issued $2062000 of subordinated

debentures to the trust in exchange for ownership of all common

security of the trust and the proceeds of the preferred securities sold by

the trust The trust Is not consolidated with the Companys financial

statements but rather the subordinated debentures are shown as

liability
The Companys investment in the common stock of the trust

was $62000 and included In other assets The Company may redeem

the subordinated debentures in whole or in part in principal amount

with integral multiples of $1 on or after September 152012 at 100% of

the principal amount plus accrued and unpaid interest The

subordinated debentures are also redeemable in whole or in part from

time to time upon occurrence of specific events defined within the

trust lndersture.The Company has the option to defer interest payments

on the subordinated debentures from time to time for period not to

exceed five consecutive years

The subordinated debentures may be Included in Tier capital with

certain limitations applicable under current regulatory guidelines and

interpretations The subordinated debentures have variable rate of

interest equal to the three month London interbank Offered Rate

UBOR plus 1.55% This rate resets on quarterly basis and was 1.793%

at December 31 2013

16 ADVANCES FROM FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK

Advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of NewYork at December

312013 and 2012 were as follows in thousands

2013 2012

Maturities January 2014 throughiune 2016 frxed rate 38000 41800

al rates from 0.41% to 3.80% averaging 0.9S% for

Oecember3t 2013 and 1.06%for Decembet 31 2012

Each advance is payable at its maturity date with prepayment penalty

for fixed rate advances.The advances were collateralized by 544943000

and $37277000 of first mortgage loans under blanket lien

arrangement at December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively Maturities

on these advances as of December 31 2013 are as follows in

thousands

Year Amount

2014 25000

2015 8500

2016 4500

Total 38000

Ilininum

Actual Regulatory

Regriataly Capital

Dpital P.eqithsmeut

Ainoart Ratio Amount Ratio

IoBa0rIl

CapAoliUnder

RegsdatoryCpital

Requirement

Amsunt Ratio

41992 1.8354 2005 805 23157 9054

42230 I15 003 40 15094 610

42132 9.16 11173 410 25291 510

Asol0ecernbarll2013

ToICopt

Ito 8s0 Wumghiud AJitis

1er1Cap8l

ilsRiatWihdAml5l

litsi Catol

itvEra25Malsi

Auoibecamber3l1012

ictaICotal

ito0ikWeighIdAtu8

lirrlcapibi

tR Wtigh25d Asset

1ir1 Capitol

to AvorogeAusotu
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Notes To Consolidated Financial Statements

17 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In the normal course of business there are various outstanding

commItments and contingent liabilities such as guarantees and

commitments to extend credit which are not reflected irs the

accompanying financial statements Off-balance sheet risk to credit

loss exists up to the face amount of these instruments although the

Company does not anticipate material losses as result of these

transactions Mortgage and other loan commitments outstanding at

December 31 2013 and 2012 amounted to $38713000 and

$46141000 respectively Fixed interest rates on mortgage and

other loan commitments outstanding can change prior to closing

only if interest rates decrease Variable rate loans float prior to

closing Outstanding commitments ott letters of credit at

December 31 2013 and 2012 amounted to $1127000 and

$2595000 respectively

irs the normal conduct of business the Company Is Involved in

various litigation matters One of these matters Involves related

party of the Company as codefendant with the bank with respect

to trust administration matter In the opinion of management the

ultimate disposition of these matters should not have materially

adverse effect nor Is material to the financial position of the Company
The Company had an accrued liability of $60000 and $55000 related

to this matter as of December31 2013 and 2012 respectively

18 ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME LOSS

The following is changes In Accumulated Other Comprehensive
Income Loss by component net of tax for the year ending

December3l2013 In thousands

Unrealized

Gainsand

Losses on

Available-

for-sale

Securities Total

Beginning balance 4691 2132 2559

Other comprehensive icomelIoss

beicre reclassitcation 4022 1j94 2828

Miounls reclassitied Irons accumulated

other comprehensive income/floss 138 138

Net current period other comprehensive

ncomelloss 4.022 1332 2690

Ending balance 669 800 131

Details about

Accumulated Other

Comprehensive

Income Comsonents

Amount

Reclassified from

Accumulated Other

Comorehenstve Income

Affected Une Item

In the Statement

whereNet

Income is presented

Gaio on sale of tsveulmenls

and other assets

Total beire lax

Tax benerd

Delined

Beneit

Perlsion

Items

The following is significant amounts reclassified out of each

component of Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss for

the year ending December31 2013 In thousands

Unrealized gains and losses on

available for nate securities

Neloltax

Amortaatioo of deresed bnefl

pension items

Prior service costs

Transition
obligation

Actoeriet gainsllossesl 1225

225 Total before lax

87 Taxbenairt

Total reclassilicalton for the period 138 flet of tax

F-21
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STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION
SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN

The purpose of the STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION the Corporation SHARE OWNER DIVIDEND

REINVESTMENT AND STOCK PURCHASE PLAN the Plan is to provide the holders of record of the

Corporations Common Stock the Common Stock with simple and convenient method of investing cash dividends paid

on the Corporations Common Stock in the purchase of as well as enabling them to make additional cash payments to

purchase additional shares of Common Stock The terms and conditions of the Plan are as follows

ELIGIBILITY TO PARTICIPATE IN PLAN All holders of record of Common Stock are eligible to

participate in the Plan Beneficial owners of Common Stock whose shares are held for them in registered names other than

their own such as in the names of brokers bank nominees or trustees should if they wish to participate in the Plan either

arrange for the holder of record tojoin the Plan or have the shares they wish to enroll for participation in the Plan transferred

to their own names

ELECTION TO PARTICIPATE IN PLAN Any holder of record of Common Stock may elect to

participate in the Plan Participant by returning to American Stock Transfer and Trust Company LLC the

Corporations Transfer Agent and the Administrator of the Plan the Agent properly completed Authorization Form as

attached hereto The completed Authorization Form appoints the Agent as the Participants agent in the capacity of Plan

Administrator for the Participant and authorizes

the Corporation to pay to the Agent for credit to the Participants account under the Plan Plan

Account all cash dividends payable on the Common Stock Dividends that the Participant has enrolled in the

Plan

the Agent as agent to credit to the Participants Plan Account any Dividends paid as well as any

shares of Common Stock distributed as non-cash dividend or otherwise on the shares of Common Stock credited

to the Participants Plan Account

the Agent as agent to apply all such Dividends received to the purchase of additional shares of

Common Stock and

the Agent as agent to apply all voluntary Additional Cash Payments made by the Participant under the

Plan as further described below to the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock

all in accordance with the further terms and conditions of the Plan

Participants may elect to reinvest Dividends paid on all or only portion of the Common Stock registered in their

names and/or held in their Plan Accounts by designating such election on the Authorization Form The Internal Revenue

Service IRS currently requires Participants to reinvest Dividends on minimum often percent 10% of the Common
Stock registered in their names and/or held in their Plan Accounts Participants electing partial reinvestment of Dividends

must designate the number of whole shares for which they want to receive cash payment of Dividends which must equal

ninety percent 90% or less of the number of whole shares registered in their names and/or held in their Plan Accounts

Dividends paid on all other shares registered in the Participants name and all other shares held in the Participants Plan

Account will be reinvested in additional shares of Common Stock

Participants may at any time deposit any Common Stock certificates in their possession with the Agent to be credited

to the Participants Plan Account Such shares will be transferred into the name of the Agent or its nominee as agent for the

Participant under the Plan and thereafter treated in the same manner as shares purchased through the Plan

Reinvestment levels may be changed from time to time as Participant desires by submitting new Authorization

Form to the Agent To be effective with respect to particular Dividend any such change must be received by the Agent at

least five business days before the record date for that Dividend

PLAN ACCOUNT After receipt of properly completed Authorization Form the Agent will open Plan

Account for the Participant as Plan Administrator and agent for the Participant and will credit to such Plan Account
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all Dividends received by the Agent from the Corporation on shares of Common Stock registered in the

Participants name and enrolled in the Plan by the Participant commencing with the first Dividend paid following

receipt of the Authorization Form by the Agent which must be received at least five business days prior to the

record date of Dividend to be effective with respect to that Dividend

all Dividends received by the Agent on any full or fractional shares credited to the Participants Plan

Account

all Additional Cash Payments as further described below received by the Agent from the Participant to

purchase additional shares of Common Stock

all full or fractional shares purchased for the Participants Plan Account after making appropriate

deductions for the purchase prices paid for such shares and

any shares of Common Stock distributed by the Corporation as dividend or otherwise on shares

credited to the Participants Plan Account

ADDITIONAL CASH PAYMENTS Any Participant may from time to time elect to purchase additional

shares of Common Stock through the Plan by using Plan Authorization Form to make voluntary additional cash payments
to the Agent of not less than $100.00 nor more than $5000.00 per quarter Additional Cash Payments which will be used

to purchase additional shares on quarterly basis as further described below For purposes of the Plan new quarter will

begin on the day following dividend payment date All shares purchased with Additional Cash Payments will be credited

to the Participants Plan Account unless the Agent is instructed otherwise by the Participant on the Authorization Form

PURCHASES OF SHARES Dividends credited to Participants Plan Account will be invested in the

purchase of additional shares of Common Stock on or about the payment date for that Dividend Additional Cash Payments
made by Participant will be invested in the purchase of additional shares of Common Stock on or about the payment date

for the next succeeding Dividend following receipt of such payment Since no interest will be paid on Additional Cash

Payments held by the Agent pending the investment of such funds it is suggested that any such payments Participant may
wish to make be sent so as to reach the Agent no later than five business days prior to the record date for the next succeeding

Dividend Any Additional Cash Payments received during quarter will be returned by mail to the Participant at the

address shown on the Agents records if written notification requesting such return is received by the Agent on or before the

last business day prior to the next Dividend record date

All shares purchased hereunder may be purchased on any securities exchange where the Common Stock is traded in

the over-the-counter market in privately negotiated transactions or from Participants who have directed the Agent to sell

their Common Stock and may be on such terms as to price delivery and otherwise and may be executed through such

brokers and otherwise as the Agent shall determine in its sole discretion Additionally whenever and to the extent so

directed by the Corporation from time to time in its sole discretion the Agent shall purchase such shares directly from the

Corporation in accordance with the further terms of this Plan In making purchases hereunder the Agent may commingle
the funds of each Participant with those of the other Participants

For purchases made directly from the Corporation the price of the Common Stock so purchased will be the fair market value

per share of the Corporations Common Stock at the time of such purchase as determined by committee appointed by the

Corporations Board of Directors the Committee This Committee will determine what it in its bestjudgment believes

to be the fair market value of share of the Corporations Common Stock from time to time The Committee may determine

such fair market value from any reasonable criteria it elects to use such as recent sales of shares of Common Stock in the

marketplace the fair market value and recent sales of shares of comparable institutions an independent firm that values the

Common Stock other measures such as return on equity return on assets and book value and any other reasonable criteria

the Committee determines For purchases made in the open market or otherwise than directly from the Corporation the

price at which the Agent shall be deemed to have acquired Common Stock for the Participants Plan Account shall be the

average price of the Common Stock purchased by the Agent with the proceeds of Dividend or with the Additional Cash

Payments being applied to such purchase as the case may be Upon each purchase of shares hereunder the Plan Account of

each Participant will be reduced by the balance to be invested from that Plan Account and credited with number of shares

including fractional shares equal to the balance to be invested from that Plan Account divided by the purchase price

applicable to such transaction determined as described above
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ACCOUNT STATEMENTS As soon as practicable following the end of each quarter in which there is

transaction in Participants Plan Account the Participant will receive detailed statement the Statement showing as

applicable

any Dividend paid on the Participants Common Stock participating in the Plan

any Additional Cash Payments received from the Participant during that quarter

the purchase prices and numbers of shares purchased during that quarter for the Participants Plan Account with

the funds held in such Account

the number of shares withdrawn from the Participants Plan Account and

as of the date of the Statement the total number of shares of Common Stock owned by the Participant that are

participating in the Plan

The last Statement of the
year

will show the aggregate amount of brokerage fees if any paid by the Corporation in respect of

shares purchased for the Participants Plan Account

ISSUANCE OF CERTIFICATES Shares purchased under the Plan will be registered in the name of the

Agent or its nominee as agent for the Participant under the Plan No certificates will be issued to Participant for the

Common Stock in the Participants Plan Account unless requested in writing or the Plan Account is terminated as hereinafter

provided Certificates for any number of whole shares of Common Stock credited to Participants Plan Account will be

issued to Participant upon written request sent to the Agent at the address indicated below Participant may either

furnish separate written instructions to the Agent each time the Participant desires that certificates be issued or furnish the

Agent with blanket instructions covering all whole shares of Common Stock credited to the Participants Plan Account from

time to time under the Plan No certificates for fractional shares will be issued notwithstanding any request therefor but

dividends on fractional interest in shares will be credited to Participants Plan Account

FEES The Corporation has agreed to pay all brokerage commissions and Agent service charges in

connection with the administration and operation of the Plan The Agent may charge Participant for additional services

performed by the Agent at the request of the Participant and not provided for herein

TAXES It is understood that the automatic investment of dividends under this Plan does not relieve the

Participant of any income taxes which may be payable on such dividends The Agent will comply with all applicable IRS

requirements concerning the withholding of taxes on dividend payments and filing of information returns for dividends

credited to each Participants Plan Account Any amounts required to be withheld will be deducted from each Dividend

prior to investment Each Participant will be provided annually with the information provided by the Agent to the IRS that

year either through receipt of duplicate of the informational return filed by the Agent with the IRS or in year-end

Statement each calendar year With respect to foreign Participants whose Dividends are subject to United States income tax

withholding the Agent will comply with all applicable IRS requirements concerning the amount of tax to be withheld which

will be deducted from each Dividend prior to investment The Agent will also report to each Participant the Participants

pro-rata share of the Agents administrative fees paid by the Corporation on behalf of all Participants

10 VOTING OF PLAN SHARES With respect to meetings of the Corporations shareholders for which

proxies are solicited Participant will receive single proxy card covering all shares registered in the Participants name as

well as all shares credited to the Participants Plan Account If no shares are registered in Participants name proxy card

will be furnished to the Participant covering all shares credited to the Participants Plan Account In either situation all

whole and fractional shares held in Participants Plan Account will be voted as directed by the Participant If Participant

does not return signed proxy card as instructed such shares will not be voted

11 TERMINATION Participation in the Plan may be terminated at any time by Participant giving written

notice to such effect to the Agent If the termination request is received less than five business days prior to Dividend

record date the request will not be processed until after that Dividend has been invested and the shares purchased credited to

the Participants Plan Account As promptly as possible following receipt of such notice certificate will be issued for all

whole shares of Common Stock held in the Participants Plan Account The Corporation and the Agent reserve the right to

terminate the Participants Plan Account immediately upon sending written notice to the Participant at the Participants last

known address as shown on the Agents Plan records In every case of termination the Participants interest in any fractional
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shares of Common Stock will be paid in cash based on the fair market value of the Corporations Common Stock on the date

the Agent receives such termination notice In every case of termination uninvested voluntary cash payments credited to the

Participants Plan Account will be returned to the Participant in cash without interest The Agent shall terminate the

Participants Plan Account upon receipt of written notice of the Participants death or adjudication of incompetency

provided however in the event of any such notice the Agent shall retain all payments received and/or shares of Common
Stock in the Participants Plan Account until the Participants legal representative shall have been appointed and furnished

proof satisfactory to the Agent of his/her right to receive such payments and/or shares of Common Stock

12 CHANGES IN CAPITALIZATION The Common Stock held by the Agent for Participants shall fully

participate in any stock dividend stock split split-up spin-off recapitalization merger consolidation exchange of shares or

other such transaction involving the Common Stock of the Corporation in accordance with the terms of such transaction In

the event that the Corporation makes available to its shareholders rights to purchase additional shares debentures or other

securities each Participant shall have the right to exercise such rights arising from whole shares credited to the Participants

Plan Account in accordance with the terms and conditions of such rights The Agent may in its sole discretion hold the

Common Stock of all Participants together in its name or in the name of its nominee

13 LIABILITY Neither the Agent nor the Corporation nor any of their respective Directors officers

employees or agents shall be liable hereunder for any act or failure to act including without limitation for any claim of

liability arising out of any failure to terminate Participants Plan Account upon such Participants death or adjudication

of incompetency prior to receipt of written notice of such death or incompetency with respect to the prices at which the

Common Stock is purchased or sold for Participants Plan Account or the timing of or terms on which such purchases or

sales are made or with
respect to the value at any time of the Common Stock acquired for or credited to Participants

Plan Account It is understood that government regulation may require the temporary curtailment or suspension of purchases

under the Plan Neither the Agent nor the Corporation nor any of their respective Directors officers or employees shall

have any liability in connection with any inability to purchase Common Stock or the timing of any purchases

14 SPENDTHRIFT PROVISION Participant may not sell pledge hypothecate or otherwise assign or

transfer any cash or Common Stock credited to the Participants Plan Account nor any other interest therein No attempt to

effect any such sale pledge hypothecation or other assignment or transfer shall be effective

15 NOTICES All notices requests or other communications from Participants relating to the Plan shall be

addressed as follows

American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC
Attention Dividend Reinvestment Department

6201 15th Avenue

Brooklyn NY 11219

1-800-937-5449

Each Participant agrees to notif the Agent promptly in writing of any change of address Notices requests or other

communications from the Agent to Participant relating to the Plan shall be addressed to the Participant at the Participants

last known address as reflected in the Agents records and shall be deemed given when received by the Participant or five

days after mailing whichever first occurs

16 AMENDMENT TERMINATION The Corporation and the Agent each reserve the right to suspend to

modif subject to any requisite authorization or approval by regulatory agencies having jurisdiction and to terminate the

Plan or any Participants participation in the Plan at any time by written notice given to all Participants or such Participant

as the case may be The Corporation and the Agent each also reserve the right to adopt and from time to time to change
such administrative rules and regulations not inconsistent in substance with the basic provisions of the Plan then in effect

as they deem desirable or appropriate for the administration of the Plan

17 GOVERNING LAW The Plan and all Plan Accounts established thereunder shall be governed by and

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of New York and the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange

Commission as they may be changed or amended from time to time

Adopted July 11 2013
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STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan

Check only one of the following options

FULL DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT
want to reinvest all cash dividends on shares now or subsequently registered in my name and account as well as cash dividends on all

shares credited to my account under the Plan understand that may also make additional cash investments of not less than $100 per

payment up to maximum amount of $5000 per quarter Complete if applicable also wish to make an additional cash investments at this

time and have therefore enclosed check or money order payable to American Stock Transfer Trust Company in the amount of

PARTIAL DIVIDEND REINVESTMENT
want to reinvest cash dividends on some of the shares currently registered in my name and account and continue to receive cash dividends

on the remaining shares Therefore please reinvest the cash dividends on ____________ shares Must be on minimum often 10%
percent of the common stock registered in participant names or held in plan accounts as currently required by the Internal Revenue

Service understand that may also make additional cash investments of not less than $100 per payment up to maximum amount of

$5000 per quarter Complete if applicable also wish to make an additional cash investment at this time and have therefore enclosed

check or money order payable to American Stock Transfer Trust Company in the amount of$__________________
ADDITIONAL CASH INVESTMENT ONLY

wish to make additional cash investments of not less than $100 per payment up to maximum amount of $5000 per quarter have

enclosed check or money order payable to American Stock Transfer Trust Company in the amount of $____________________

understand that regardless of which option have selected above dividends on all shares held in my Plan account will be reinvested

Please sign on other side of this card
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Share Owner Dividend Reinvestment

and Stock Purchase Plan

For Share Owners of

Steuben Trust Corporation

Return to

American Stock Transfer Trust Company LLC
Attention Dividend Reinvestment Department

62011 5th Avenue

BrooklynNY 11219

Date

This is Not Proxy

Signatures of all registered owners
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PART Ill

EXHIBITS

Exhibit Index

Exhibit Sequential Page

Number Description
Location

2.1 Certificate of Incorporation of Steuben Trust

Corporation as amended

Amended and Restated Bylaws of Steuben

Trust Corporation

3.1 Authorization Form for Companys See Annex to

Dividend Reinvestment and Stock Purchase Plan Offering Circular

3.2 Form of Stock Certificate of Steuben Trust Corporation

3.3 Indenture for Junior Subordinated Debenture

Dated July 16 2007 for Steuben Statutory Trust II

subsidiary of Steuben Trust Corporation

omitted but the issuer agrees to provide to the

Commission UPOfl request

6.1 Change in Control Agreement between Steuben Trust

Company and Brenda Copeland dated March 12 2009

6.2 Steuben Trust Corporation 2010 Long-Term

Stock Incentive Plan effective April 15 2010

6.3 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and

Robert Blades Jr dated March 13 2008

6.4 First Amendment to the Steuben Trust Company Split

Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust Company

And Robert Blades Jr dated December 17 2009

6.5 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and

Brenda Copeland dated March 13 2008

6.6 Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Steuben

Trust Company and Edward Coil Jr dated

September 1998

6.7 Split Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust

Company and Edward Coil Jr dated December 21

1998

6.8 Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Steuben

Trust Company and Charles Edmondson dated

December 30 2008

6.9 Split Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust Company

And Charles Edmondson dated November 16 2009 Page 73 of 77
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6.10 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee Agreement

Between Steuben Trust Company and Stoner Horey

Dated March 13 2008

6.11 Director Deferred Fee Agreement between Steuben Trust

Company and Stoner Horey dated September 1998

Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee Agreement

6.12 Between Steuben Trust Company and Charles

Oliver dated March 13 2008

6.13 Split Dollar Agreement between Steuben Trust Company

And Charles Oliver dated December21 1998

6.14 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee Agreement

between Steuben Trust Company and Kenneth

Philbrick dated March 13 2008

6.15 First Amendment to the Split Dollar Agreement

Between Steuben Trust Company and Kenneth

Philbrick dated February 2010

6.16 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and

David Shults dated March 13 2008

6.17 First Amendment to the Split Dollar Agreement

Between Steuben Trust Company and David

Shults dated December 17 2009

6.18 Amended and Restated Director Deferred Fee

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and

Eric Shults dated March 13 2008

6.19 First Amendment to the Split Dollar Agreement and

Split Dollar Policy Endorsement between Steuben Trust

Company And Eric Shults dated April 19 2001

620 Amended and Restated Executive Deferred Compensation

Agreement between Steuben Trust Company and

Brenda Copeland dated March 13 2008

6.2 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and Hans Kunze dated

March 30 2008

6.22 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and James McCormick

Dated May 30 2008

6.23 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and Victor Myers dated

May 30 2008

6.24 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and Kenneth Philbrick

Dated September 1998 Page 74 of 77



6.25 First Amendment to the Amended September Dollar

Agreement dated December 14 2001 between Steuben

Trust Company and Kenneth Philbrick dated

February52010

6.26 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and Theresa Sedlock dated

June 12008

6.27 Executive Deferred Compensation Agreement between

Steuben Trust Company and Natalie Willoughby

Dated May 29 2008

6.28 Retainer Fee Agreement with the law firm of

Shults and Shults dated April 16 2013

101 Consent of Crowe Horwath LLP

10.2 Consent of Underberg Kessler LLP

11.1 Opinion of Underberg Kessler LLP

15 Power of Attorney
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Exhibit 10.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

We consent to the use in this Registration Statement No 024-1 0363 of Steuben Trust Corporation on
Post Qualification Amendment No ito Form 1-A of our report dated February 2014 on the

consolidated financial statements of Steuben Trust Corporation

Crowe Horwath LLP

Cleveland Ohio

March 12 2014
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SIGNATURES

The Issuer The Issuer has duly caused this Offering Statement to be signed on its behalf by the un

dersigned thereunto duly authorized in Hornell New York on this 12th day of March 2014

STEUBEN TRUST CORPORATION

James Nicoloff Executive ViIIresident

and Chief Financial Officer

This Offering Statement has been signed by the following persons in the capacities and on the dates

indicated

Date March 12 2014

Bren Copeland resi ent and

Chief Executive Officer Principal Executive Officer

Date March 12 2014

James Nicoloff Executive VJPresident

Treasurer and Chief Financial Officer Principal

Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

Date March 12 2014 David Shults

David Shults Director and

Chairman of the Board

Date March 12 2014 Robei Blades

Robert Blades Jr Director

Date March 12 2014 Michael Davidson

Michael Davidson Director

Date March 12 2014 Charles Edmondson

Charles Edmondson Director

Date March 12 2014 Stoner Horey

Stoner Horey Director

Date March 12 2014 L.victorMyers

Victor Myers Director

Date March 12 2014 Charles Oliver

Charles Oliver Director

Date March 12 2014 Amanda Parker

Amanda Parker Director

Date March 12 2014 Eric Shults

Eric Shults Director

Date March 12 2014 Shei.Iy Walton

Sherry Walton Director

James Nicoloff as Attome rn Fact


